MALEFAHLE, Alfr ed, lost his shop when it was
demolished by members of the SAP in Moutse,
KwaNdebele, in January 1986 during violent conflict
over INCORPORATION into KwaNdebele.

MALEFAHLO, Makwape (64), was hacked and burnt
to death by ‘comrades’ in Moutse, KwaNdebele, on 7
September 1986 during conflict over INCORPORATION
into KwaNdebele.

MALEFAHLO, Moseme Solomon (84), was severely
beaten by Ndebele-speaking men in Siyabuswa
community hall, KwaNdebele, on 20 December 1985
because he resisted the scheduled iNncorPORATION Of
Moutse into KwaNdebele later that month.
MALEFAHLO, Selele Peter (21), was severely beaten
by members of the Bophuthatswana Defence Force
while attending a community meeting in Ga-Rankuwa,
Bophuthatswana, in March 1986.

MALEFAHLO, Simon , was arrested in 1969 by
Rosebank police under Pass Laws at Killarney,
Johannesburg, and transferred to Modderbee prison,
Benoni. He has not been seen since.

MALEFANE, Adam (37), was shot and severely injured
by members of the SAP during the SHARPEVILLE MASSACRE
in Sharpeville, Vereeniging, Tvl, on 21 March 1960.
MALEFANE, Captain Petrus (27), was shot dead by a
local supporter of the Lingelethu West Town Council
on 25 October 1990. At least eight people were killed
that day by police and supporters of the town council,
during and after a mass march to express community
opposition to the council. A named perpetrator serving
a prison sentence for the killing was refused amnesty.
MALEHO, Puseletso Zephora , was shot by members
of the SAP during the SHARPEVILLE MASSACRE in
Sharpeville, Vereeniging, Tvl, on 21 March 1960.
MALEKA, Alfr ed, was shot and stabbed to death in
Pimville, Soweto, Johannesburg, on 12 April 1992
when IFP supporters attacked the ANC-supporting
Fred Clarke informal settlement.

MALEKA, Anna Thoko (40), was shot and stabbed by
armed men who boarded a Soweto-bound train at
Jeppe station and began attacking as the train passed
George Goch station, on 13 September 1990. The
attackers killed about 26 people and wounded 45
others. See TRAIN VIOLENCE.

MALEKA, Monge Joubert , a police informer, was
abducted outside the Johannesburg COSATU offices
by COSATU members who suspected him of spying.
He was held against his will, assaulted, and paraded at
a press conference as a police spy. Three COSATU
officials were granted amnesty for the abduction
(AC/2000/116).

MALEKA, Solomon (16), died after being shot by
members of the SAP at Kliptown, Soweto, Johannes-
burg, on 3 May 1987 when police reportedly passed
his high school in a Hippo during school boycotts.
MALEKA, Tickey, a patron at a tavern, was injured
when MK operatives opened fire on policemen sitting
drinking at the tavern in Mariana Street, Atteridgeville,
Tvl, on 18 March 1988. Three policemen were killed in
the attack. Three MK operatives were granted amnesty
(AC/2000/199).
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MALEKA, William Madime (60), was abducted from
his home in Moteti, KwaNdebele, by ImBokobo
members on 1 January 1986 and assaulted at SiyABUSWA
community hall. The attacks, led by named KwaNdebele
government officials, were designed to suppress
resistance to INCORPORATION into KwaNdebele.
MALEKE, Khani Jacob , was shot dead by a member
of the SAP in Khutsong, Carletonville, Tvl, in March
1990. At the time Khutsong was occupied by the SAP
leading to numerous clashes between police and the
community.

MALEKO, Dieketsang Andr onica, was injured and
suffered damage to property on 17 June 1992 in the
BoIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near Vanderbijlpark,
Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27 seriously
injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted amnesty; a
further three applications were refused (AC/2000/209).
MALELE, Almond , died in detention on 20 January
1977, 11 days after being arrested as a suspected
underground ANC activist. Mr Malele is officially
recorded as having died of natural causes after hitting
his head on a desk during interrogation by members of
the SAP.

MALELE, Edward Boy (45), was beaten to death by
alleged members of the Gazankulu Police at the Giyani
police station, Louis Trichardt, Tvl, on 25 December
1991 after his arrest for questioning about the death of
a chief.

MALEMA, Paulos Vincent (14), was shot and injured
by members of the SAP in Heilbron, OFS, on 24 July
1992. In an armoured patrol of the area, police opened
fire, hitting Paulos as he ran to hide in a yard. A
political march was scheduled to take place in the area
on that day.

MALEMBE, Nonhlanhla Eunice (33), lost her house
in an arson attack in Mevamhlophe, KwaZulu, near
Empangeni, Natal, on 21 February 1993 in continuing
conflict between IFP and ANC supporters in the area.
One person was stabbed and burnt to death in the
attack.

MALEPE, Motsabi Lucas , was shot dead by Bophutha-
tswana Police in Winterveld, Bophuthatswana, on 19
February 1986 during political violence between
‘comrades’ and the homeland government.

MALESA, Emmanuel Phaladi (17), an ANCYL
member, was detained, severely beaten and held in
solitary confinement by members of the SAP in
Namakgale, Lebowa, on 16 June 1993. The ANCYL
clashed with police en route to a stadium to mark the
seventeenth anniversary of the SOWETO UPRISING.
Eleven other people were detained with Emmanuel
and they were all charged with public violence. The
charges were later dropped.

MALETE, Mmakgobo (66), had her home in GaMatlala,
Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of chief BK Matlala
in February 1980, during conflict between Chief
Matlala and residents who supported the ANC-aligned
People’s Congress.

MALETE, Wilson Latela (51), a People’s Congress
supporter, had his house in GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt
down by supporters of Chief BK Matlala on 2 February
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1980, because Mr Malete resisted Lebowa’s proposed
independence from South Africa.

MALETJANE, Modjadji Florah  (51), an ANC member,
sustained head and back injuries when thrown from a
moving train by IFP supporters in Germiston, Tvl, on 9
September 1991. See TRAIN VIOLENCE.

MALETSANE, Ezekiel , a traffic officer, was shot and
injured by MK operatives in Krugersdorp, Tvl, on 27
September 1991. The MK operatives were escaping
arrest after being stopped at a roadblock by traffic
officers. Several other traffic officers were also injured
and a passing motorist was shot dead and robbed of
his vehicle by the fleeing operatives. Three MK
operatives were granted amnesty for the incident
(AC/1998/0091).

MALEVU, Lettie Mamiki , was injured when a hand
grenade exploded in a bus transporting workers in
Heidelberg, Tvl, on 28 September 1992 during a labour
dispute between striking COSATU-aligned FAWU
workers and non-striking IFP-aligned UWUSA workers
from July to December 1992. One person was killed
and 13 others injured in the attack.

MALEVU, Ntombi Angelinah , was shot and
wounded when ANC security guards opened fire from
the ANC headquarters at Shell House, Johannesburg,
on a crowd of IFP marchers, on 28 March 1994. At
least nine marchers were killed and around 100
injured. Ten ANC security guards were granted
amnesty (AC/2000/142).

MALEWA, Elizabeth Paulinah (20), was detained by
the SAP at Soshanguve, Pretoria, in 1986 and accused
of burning down the house of a police officer at a time
of increasing attacks on police. Police were seen as
legitimate targets in the struggle against apartheid.
MALGAS, Basi Kimberley (68), was severely beaten
on his arrest by members of the SAP in Robertson,
Cape, on 12 June 1986. He was then detained under
emergency regulations for three months. See poLicE
BRUTALITY.

MALGAS, Bethwell (21), a SAYCO member, was shot
and injured by community cOuNCILLORS in Crossroads,
Cape Town, on 23 December 1989, during a youth
march past the municipal offices. There were numerous
deaths and injuries in December 1989 when Crossroads
residents, under Jeffrey Nongwe, sought to break away
from the pro-government Johnson Ngxobongwana and
join the ANC.

MALGAS, Columbus , was shot and injured by
members of the SAP in Robertson, Cape, on 16 June
1986. He was then detained for several months under
emergency regulations. See POLICE BRUTALITY.
MALGAS, Nombolelo Evelyn , was severely beaten
by police at the police station after being arrested in
Robertson, Cape, in 1985. Ms Malgas was again
arrested in November 1985 and charged with public
violence, spending three months in custody. She was
then detained on 18 June 1986 for three months
under emergency regulations. See POLICE BRUTALITY.
MALGAS, Noncethakalo Catherine  (34), was shot
dead by members of the SAP in BOTSHABELO, near
Bloemfontein, on 15 February 1990, while participating
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in a protest march against the INCORPORATION Of
Botshabelo into QwaQwa. Police set up roadblocks and
fired teargas in an attempt to stop marchers reaching
the Supreme Court in Bloemfontein. Three other
protesters were killed and many were injured when
police opened fire on marchers.

MALGAS, Nonkululeko Regina Nkulu  (28), was
arrested and beaten by a named member of the
AwmasoLomzl vigilantes in Ashton, Cape, on 20 November
1985, during a mass swoop with police. She was later
convicted with public violence and served two years in
prison.

MALGAS, Singokwana Er nest, an ANC member, was
imprisoned on Robben Island from 1963 to 1977, and
was subsequently detained and tortured on several
occasions between 1977 and 1989 in Port Elizabeth
and Cradock, Cape.

MALGAS, Siphiwo , was burnt and later died when
his home was petrol-bombed by unidentified persons
in Cradock, Cape, on 18 June 1985. His home was
allegedly attacked because of his father’s involvement
in the UDF.

MALGAS, Vuyani Mbuyiselo  (24), an MK member
from Soweto, Johannesburg, was detained in 1979 by
ANC security. He was held at Quatro camp, Angola,
until 1983, during which time he was subjected to
torture. A number of ANC members were detained,
tortured and killed during a period of anxiety about
infiltration by South African agents following the SADF
bombing of Nova Catengue camp in 1979.

MALGAS, Zola Golden (41), was shot by members
of the CDF in front of his house in Mdantsane, Ciskei,
in 1983, allegedly while he was helping people shot by
the police during the MDANTSANE BUS BOYCOTT.
MALHERBE- BRODY, Michelle Anne (25), was injured
in a limpet mine attack by APLA members at the
Buffalo Springs Spur restaurant in Queenstown, Cape,
on 3 December 1992. See APLA ATTACKS.

MALHERBE, P, was present when the SADF base
was attacked by MK operatives at Letaba stadium,
Nkowa Nkowa, Gazankulu, on 12 April 1990. Five
SADF members were injured. Two MK operatives
were granted amnesty for the incident (AC/2000/98).
MALI, Enoch (43), an ANC supporter and NEHAWU
affiliate, was shot in both legs by a named member of
the MunicipAL PoLice on 7 February 1987 at Fort
Beaufort, Cape.

MALI, Goodwin Mengxani (20), was one of two
youths shot dead by members of the SAP near
Crossroads, Cape Town, on 16 October 1985, in a
repeat of the TRoJaN HORSE INCIDENT, CAPE TOWN, in
Athlone the previous day.

MALI, Latiswa Telmina (15), was shot and injured by
members of the SAP in Crossroads, Cape Town, in
1985.

MALI, Matthews Mayezana , was one of five Pogo
supporters shot dead by members of the SAP and
white residents, when a crowd of Pogo supporters
marched into Paarl, Cape, on 21 November 1962 and
launched an attack on the police station and private
residences, killing two white residents.
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MALIBE, Reuben Mandla (17), was repeatedly
assaulted, intimidated and tortured by members of the
SAP in Tembisa, Tvl, on 1 November 1976 because he
was regarded as an instigator of student boycotts
against the use of Afrikaans as a medium of instruction
in black schools.

MALIE, Samuel Mokhele , an ANC supporter, died after
he was allegedly forced to drink poison by a member
of the SAP in Harrismith, OFS, on 17 October 1981.
MALIE, Tseko Ajustinus (18), an ANCYL member,
was shot dead by alleged members of the SADF in
Sharpeville, Vereeniging, Tvl, on 18 August 1992.
MALIEHE, Ben, a civilian, was traumatised when
APLA operatives opened fire on a vehicle travelling
from Zastron to Sterkspruit in the OFS on 18 March
1992. In the attack, one person was shot dead while
he lay injured next to the car. Another was severely
injured. Two managed to escape unhurt. See APLA
ATTACKS. One APLA member was granted amnesty
(AC/2000/148). See ZASTRON ROAD AMBUSH.

MALIEHE, Joseph Mahlomola , was shot dead by
members of the SAP in Sharpeville, Vereeniging, Tvl,
on 3 September 1984 during a rent boycott during the
VAAL UPRISING.

MALINDI, Agnes , was killed on 17 June 1992 in the
BoIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near Vanderbijlpark,
Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27 seriously
injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted amnesty; a
further three applications were refused (AC/2000/209).
MALINDI, Fanyana Ishmael (19), an MK operative and
Sharpeville self-defence unit leader, was tortured and
shot dead by members of the SAP in Orange Farm,
Vereeniging, Tvl, on 30 March 1993. Conflicting
reasons for his arrest were given including robbery, the
killing of white civilians at Eikenhof, and his connection
to MK operatives killed by police in Sharpeville. Two
others arrested with Mr Malindi provided sworn
affidavits about extreme torture inflicted on him by the
police before his death. Police also disrupted Mr
Malindi’s funeral.

MALINDI, Francinah , was severely injured on 17 June
1992 in the BoIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near
Vanderbijlpark, Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27
seriously injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted
amnesty; a further three applications were refused
(AC/2000/209).

MALINDI, Gloria Jongiwe (43), was beaten, raped
and robbed by a white Railway Policeman on 14 May
1986 in Cape Town while in the ‘whites only’ section
of a train.

MALINDI, Lydia Mananki , was severely injured and
suffered damage to property on 17 June 1992 in the
BOIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near Vanderbijlpark,
Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27 seriously
injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted amnesty; a
further three applications were refused (AC/2000/209).
MALINDI, Mkhonto Samson , was shot dead by a
named perpetrator allegedly collaborating with the
SAP at Avalon cemetery in Soweto, on 21 September
1985 while attending a funeral for a ‘comrade’.
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MALINDI, Zolile ‘Zollie’ (36), an ANC supporter in
Cape Town, was detained for six months, first in 1960
and then in 1963, and was severely tortured after
being taken to Pretoria. In 1966 he was sentenced to
six months’ imprisonment for political offences after
again being tortured. After his 1960 detention, he was
banned for a period of 12 years. Between 1985 and
1989, while serving as a national UDF official, he
endured four further periods of detention under
emergency regulations. One of these lasted for 13
months, after which restriction orders were imposed
on him. See POLICE BRUTALITY.

MALINDISA, Jabulile Lina , was shot and injured in
Ermelo, Tvl, on 14 September 1992 when he was
caught in conflict between the IFP-aligned BLack CaTs
and ANC supporters.

MALINGA, Belesia (53), an ANC supporter, was killed
by IFP supporters in Kwadela, Davel, Tvl, on 27 July
1991 during tension in the area after a number of
houses belonging to councillors were burnt after they
joined the IFP.

MALINGA, Bhe , a member of the SAP, was shot dead
by members of an ANC self-defence unit (SDU) during
conflict between the BLack Cars and the ANC in
Wesselton, Ermelo, Tvl, in October 1993. One SDU
member was granted amnesty (AC/98/0121).
MALINGA, Bigboy Godfrey (23), a UDF supporter,
was shot and injured when named members of the
KwaZuLu PoLice and the SADF opened fire on a violent
confrontation between UDF and Inkatha supporters in
Pietermaritzburg area on 26 March 1989.

MALINGA, Bongani , an ANC supporter, was hit by a
train while fleeing from named IFP supporters who
had attacked and burnt down his house at Umkomaas,
Natal, on 24 December 1990. He lost a leg as a result
of the incident.

MALINGA, Bongani , was shot dead by members of
an ANC self-defence unit (SDU) during conflict
between the BLack Cats and the ANC in Wesselton,
Ermelo, Tvl, on 22 October 1993. One SDU member
was granted amnesty for the killing (AC/98/0120).
MALINGA, Brian Themba , was injured when a limpet
mine, placed under a police van by members of the
‘Basil February’ MK unit, exploded at the Duduza
stadium, Tvl, on 11 June 1989. One MK operative was
granted amnesty for the attempted murder
(AC/2000/158).

MALINGA, Busisiwe Beauty (42), had her house
petrol-bombed by ‘comrades’ in Meadowlands,
Soweto, Johannesburg, on 15 August 1987 because
she was living with a policeman.

MALINGA, Busisiwe Maureen (32), had her house
burnt down by named Inkatha supporters in Inanda,
near KwaMashu, Durban, on 13 November 1989,
allegedly because her brothers were UDF supporters.
One brother, aged 17, was shot dead by Inkatha
supporters in Inanda on the same day.

MALINGA, Dolly Doris (12), was beaten with batons
and hit with guns and rifles by hamed SAP members
at a night vigil for a political activist in Khutsong,
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Carletonville, Tvl, on 5 July 1986 during the state of
emergency. Police surrounded the tent before entering
and severely beating people. Dolly and a friend
regained consciousness at Leratong hospital.
MALINGA, Eunice Zandile (23), an ANC supporter,
was shot and injured by IFP supporters at the taxi rank
at Ixopo, Natal, on 20 January 1994 in fighting
between ANC and IFP supporters. Six bystanders
were wounded. Ms Malinga lost her sight in one eye
as a result of the shooting.

MALINGA, Jabu James (37), was severely beaten by
members of the SADF in Alexandra, Johannesburg, in
1986 due to his political involvement. He lost nine
teeth in the attack and has ear problems as a result of
his injuries.

MALINGA, Leonard Mshiyeni (57), was stabbed to
death by IFP-supporting hostel-dwellers in September
1991 in Bruntville, near Mooi River, Natal, while
walking past a hostel towards the taxi rank. Hostilities
between hostel-dwellers and township residents
frequently resulted in violent conflict in Bruntville. See
BRUNTVILLE ATTACKS.

MALINGA, Mami Nontsikelo (18), had her home
burnt down by IFP supporters in Edendale, KwaZulu,
near Pietermaritzburg, on 19 September 1990 (the day
after an IFP rally). Ms Malinga was thought to be
harbouring a person who had deserted the IFP.
MALINGA, Mbuyiselwa (27), was shot dead in
Mpophomeni, KwaZulu, near Howick, Natal, on 8 April
1993 during continuing conflict between IFP and ANC
supporters in the area.

MALINGA, Minah Delekile , a UDF supporter, had her
house looted and set alight on 6 April 1990 when a
group of Inkatha supporters attacked UDF supporters
and residents at Mpumalanga, KwaZulu, near Durban,
in spite of a heavy police and military presence.
Fourteen people were killed and at least 120 homes
burnt down. One former IFP member was granted
amnesty (AC/1999/0332).

MALINGA, Mmakgauta Mar garet, was severely
injured in a bomb, planted by members of the AVF in
Wesselsbron, OFS, on 15 November 1993, during a
right-wing campaign to force the government to
acknowledge their struggle for the creation of a
volkstaat. Four perpetrators were granted amnesty
(AC/1999/0001).

MALINGA, Mphikeleli Joseph  (36), an ANC supporter,
was shot and killed by IFP members during political
conflict at Ethandakukhanya, Piet Retief, Tvl, on 9 June
1993. One perpetrator was refused amnesty
(AC/1998/0023).

MALINGA, Msende Michael (56), had his house looted
and set alight by IFP supporters at Mandini, Natal, on
29 November 1993. Mr Malinga was allegedly
targeted because his son was an ANC supporter.
MALINGA, Nkanyiso , a member of the SAP, was
injured by a hand grenade thrown through the window
of a house at Umlazi, Durban, on 11 June 1990. Two
of his colleagues were also injured in the explosion,
which was aimed at Mr Malinga. One MK operative
was granted amnesty (AC/2000/159).
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MALINGA, Nkosi Amos (62), had his house at
Umkomaas, near Durban, burnt down by IFP supporters,
one of whom is named, on 24 December 1990 in
intensifying political conflict in the area. The family fled
the area during the attack. Mr Malinga’s son was
severely injured when he was hit by a train while fleeing.
MALINGA, Nkosinathi Zwelonke Imaan  (15), was
shot and injured by members of the SAP who opened
fire on protesting students in Steadville, Ladysmith,
Natal on 5 March 1990.

MALINGA, Ntombizodwa Eugina , was injured when
a limpet mine, placed under a police van by members of
the ‘Basil February’ MK unit, exploded at the Duduza
stadium, Tvl, on 11 June 1989. One MK operative was
granted amnesty for the attempted murder
(AC/2000/158).

MALINGA, Philemon Jabulane (30), an ANC supporter,
had his home burnt down by IFP supporters in Kwadela,
Davel, Tvl, on 5 February 1991.

MALINGA, Queen Dorothy (15), an ANCYL member,
was shot and injured by members of the SAP in
Thandukukhanya, Piet Retief, Tvl, on 3 June 1993
during a commemoration ceremony for an ANC activist
killed near the Swaziland border. Police opened fire on
mourners unprovoked and two people were killed and
four injured.

MALINGA, Samuel Julie (44), died in detention in
Pietermaritzburg on 31 January 1977. He had been a
founder member of PAC in the region, and had been
arrested because of his political activities. He is one of
four PAC members who died in detention while
awaiting the ‘Bethal trial’. See BETHAL 18.

MALINGA, Sibusiso , had his house bumnt down by IFP
supporters in Kwadela, Davel, Tvl, on 27 July 1991
during conflict between IFP supporters and ANC
supporters.

MALINGA, Theodora , was injured when a limpet mine
placed, under a police van by members of the ‘Basil
February’ MK unit, exploded at the Duduza stadium,
Tvl, on 11 June 1989. One MK operative was granted
amnesty for the attempted murder (AC/2000/158).
MALINGA, Thomas (24), an ANC supporter, was
arrested, severely beaten and detained for a month by
the police in Worcester, Cape, in September 1985. He
later served a five-year prison sentence for public
violence.

MALINGA, Zacharia (15), an ANC supporter, was
stabbed to death by named IFP supporters in Kwadela,
Davel Tvl, on 27 July 1991.

MALINGA, Zola (18), was shot and injured by
members of KwaZuLu PoLice who opened fire on
mourners returning from a funeral at llifracombe, near
Durban in November 1990.

MALINGA, Zondelani Ellenour  (52), a member of the
local Crisis Committee, had her house burnt down by
IFP supporters at Trust Feeds, New Hanover, near
Pietermaritzburg, on 2 December 1988. Ms Malinga’s
son was a UDF supporter. The attack took place a day
before the TrRusT FEEDS MASSACRE as the SAP withdrew
from the area, leaving UDF-supporting families
vulnerable to attack.
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MALINKI, (first name not given), an MK operative, was
shot dead by members of the SAP in Protea, Soweto,
on 21 November 1980.

MALISHE, Linah Ntombi (57), an Inkatha supporter,
was beaten and stabbed to death by UDF supporters
in Izingolweni, near Port Shepstone, Natal, on 25
January 1990.

MALISHE, Themba Collin , an ANC supporter,
sustained burn injuries in a petrol-bomb attack by
Inkatha supporters in Alfred, near Port Shepstone,
Natal, on 5 February 1990 in intense political conflict
following the uneanNING of political organisations three
days earlier.

MALITI, Lee Man (41), a member of the Security
Branch, was shot and injured by named ANC
supporters in Middelburg, Cape, on 8 August 1993.
MALITI, Robert Nana (22), an MK operative, was
arrested on 22 October 1988 near Crossroads, Cape
Town. He was beaten and tortured so severely by
named and other members of the SAP and Security
Branch that he required brain surgery. The torture left
him with permanent mental and physical disabilities.
Mr Maliti was then held for six months under secTion
29 before being sentenced to a five-year prison term,
of which he served two years.

MALIWA, Oupa Joseph , was killed by alleged
members of the SAP in Mafikeng, Bophuthatswana,
on 13 March 1978 shortly after visiting his daughter in
exile in Botswana. Lichtenburg police told his wife he
died of a heart attack but the death certificate states
he died of injuries sustained in a car crash.
MALIYANA, Tsotetsi Mapule (47), had her house
burnt down in Nqutu, KwaZulu, near Vryheid, Natal, on
20 April 1994 in ongoing conflict between ANC and
IFP supporters in the area during the run-up to the
APRIL 1994 ELECTIONS.

MALLESON, Harry Rodbard , sustained damage to
his property in a limpet mine explosion at a bus stop
near the Checkers shopping complex in Silverton, Tvl,
on 4 July 1986. Four MK operatives were granted
amnesty for the attack (AC/1999/0257).

MALOBA, Elias (19), a South African Youth Congress
member, was arrested by members of the SAP and
charged with arson on 8 July 1985 in Daveyton, Tvl.
He was found guilty after the charge was changed to
public violence and was sentenced to seven years’
imprisonment.

MALOBELA, Kamtajanga Justice (26), died in police
custody in Pretoria on 22 September 1993. His parents
were told he hanged himself. The victim was found with
documents showing his involvement in underground
political operations.

MALOBOLA, Balise Ermnest (25), a UDF supporter, was
abducted by ImBokobo members in 1986, and taken to
Almansdrift Hall in KwaNdebele where he was beaten
with sjamboks , allegedly in an attempt to force him to
join ImBokoDO.

MALOBOLA, Mabuza , a COSAS member, is assumed
to have been burnt to death by Vlakplaas operatives at
Vlaklaagte, KwaNdebele, in June 1986. Malobola was
recruited with eight other youth activists by Vlakplaas
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askaris for supposed military training. The house they
were staying in was set alight and their bodies were
burnt beyond recognition. See NIETVERDIEND AMBUSH.
MALOKA, Matlaka Julia , was severely injured and
suffered damage to property on 17 June 1992 in the
BoIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near Vanderbijlpark,
Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27 seriously
injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted amnesty; a
further three applications were refused (AC/2000/209).
MALOKA, Molefe Abel (45), an ANC supporter, was
detained for 31 days during 1990 by the Bophutha-
tswana Police in Hammanskraal, Tvl, under emergency
regulations, still in force in this area. In 1961 Mr Maloka
was deprived of his chieftainship and had his land
confiscated. In 1984 when his cattle strayed onto land
formerly owned by him, his hand was broken during
severe beating by a named perpetrator.

MALOKA, Motlhoki Paulus (41), was arrested and
detained by members of the Bophuthatswana Police
at Maboloko near Brits, Tvl, in September 1976 for
suspected involvement in acts of violence in the
community during conflict over the chieftancy.
MALOKE, Charles T okelo , was shot dead by members
of the MunicipAL PoLice in Kliptown, Soweto, on 26
August 1986 while they were trying to evict residents
during a rent boycott.

MALOMA, Sibonsile Phumzile (15) was shot by
members of the SAP in kaNyamazane, Nelspruit, Tvl,
on 13 February 1986 during a student protest.
MALONEY, Christian C , was severely injured when
APLA operatives threw hand grenades at and opened
fire on patrons at the Crazy Beat Disco in Newcastle,
Natal, on 14 February 1994. One person was shot
dead and several others were injured in the attack.
See APLA atTacks. Three APLA operatives were
granted amnesty (AC/1998/0016).

MALOPE, Andr ew, a Brigadier in the Bophuthatswana
Police was shot and killed by MK operatives at
Mabopane, Bophuthatswana, during August 1986.
Amnesty applicants testified that Mr Malope was
allegedly targeted because he was implicated in
numerous cases of assault and torture of political
detainees. Four MK members were granted amnesty
(AC/1998/0048).

MALOPE, Beauty (21), was injured when a limpet
mine, planted by MK operatives, exploded during
lunchtime at the Wimpy restaurant in Benoni, Tvl, on
30 July 1988. One woman was killed and at least 66
people were injured. Four MK operatives were granted
amnesty for the planning and execution of the attack
(AC/1999/0294).

MALOPE, Edward (16), was reported to the
Commission as having disappeared from his home in
Dennilton, KwaNdebele, in 1976. The Commission
established that Mr Malope joined MK and operated
under the name of ‘Joseph “Makero” Masimini’. In
1984, he was executed by firing squad in Angola in
1984 on the orders of an ANC military tribunal, following
a mutiny in the Pango camp. See ANC cAmPs.
MALOPE, Johannes Lekgoa , was shot dead by IFP
supporters in Sebokeng, Tvl, on 18 April 1993 in the
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aftermath of the assassination of CHris Hani. IFP
supporters in a VW Jetta fired indiscriminately, killing
at least 19 people on that day. The car was eventually
hijacked and the occupants shot dead.

MALOPE, Millios T oto, a member of the SAP, was
shot and injured by MK operatives in an armed robbery
at the Emthonjeni police station, Machadodorp, Tvl, on
25 July 1990. The aim of the robbery was to seize
weapons. A police colleague and one of the MK
operatives were shot dead. One MK operative was
granted amnesty (AC/2000/109).

MALOPE, Richard , a member of the SAP, was shot at
by APLA operatives in Katlehong, Tvl, on 21 January
1993. See APLA AtTAcks. One APLA member was
granted amnesty (AC/1998/0051).

MALOPI ,(first name not given), a constable in the
SAP, was threatened at gunpoint when MK operatives
robbed the Ormonde police station, Johannesburg, on
27 February 1993. No one was injured in the robbery,
which was aimed at acquiring weapons for local self-
defence units (SDUs). Two MK operatives were
granted amnesty (AC/1999/0325).

MALOTO, James , was one of three people injured in
a limpet mine explosion at the Tembisa police station
barracks, Tvl, on 10 October 1988. Two MK operatives
were granted amnesty (AC/2001/132).

MALU, Vusi Brian (34), was shot and injured by
members of the KwaZuLu PoLice in KwaMashu,
Durban on 23 December 1989.

MALUANE, Felisberto Catine , was sjambokked by a
named ANC supporter at Shongwe mission, Nelspruit,
Tvl, in May 1987. Mr Maluane was rescued before
being burnt alive.

MALUKA, Andries Fana , an MK operative, returned
to South Africa in March 1992 and was stabbed to
death by named members of the SAP in Komatipoort,
Tvl, on 10 April 1993. The day before, police demanded
his presence at Tonga police station where he was
taken to court and released on his own recognisance.
MALUKA, Paulus , was shot in both legs by members
of the SAP during the SHARPEVILLE MASSACRE in
Sharpeville, Vereeniging, Tvl, on 21 March 1960.
MALULEKA, Charles , an ImBokobo member, lost his
house in an arson attack at Moutse, KwaNdebele, in
1986 during conflict over proposed INCORPORATION into
KwaNdebele.

MALULEKA, Charlie Ntshimane (37), was arrested in
December 1992 and detained for 18 months by
Bophuthatswana Police in Hammanskraal prison, Tvl,
during forced removals.

MALULEKA, Elphas , a UDF supporter, had his house
looted and set alight when a group of Inkatha
supporters and CAPRIVI TRAINEES attacked a UDF
meeting in a house at Mpumalanga, KwaZulu, near
Durban, on 18 January 1988. Nine people were killed
and an estimated 200 people were injured in the
attack. The group went on to destroy around eight
houses. One former Inkatha member was granted
amnesty (AC/1999/0332).

MALULEKA, Nonhlahla , aged four months, died
when hit on the head by a teargas cannister fired by
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members of the SAP at the Akanani shopping centre
in Lulekani, Gazankulu, on 28 May 1990. Police were
allegedly firing at a crowd involved in a UDF-organised
boycott of the centre.

MALULEKA, Spando Evelyn (30), was slapped twice
across the face by named policemen in balaclavas in
Bela-Bela police station, Warmbaths, Tvl, in April 1993.
She fell on a rock and damaged her spine. Ms Maluleka
was beaten on suspicion of being involved in burning
an informer’s shack with other people, in violence
after the assassination of SACP leader CHRris HANI.
MALULEKE, Jim Mughakaza (39), was severely
injured when a limpet mine, planted by MK operatives,
exploded during lunchtime at the Wimpy restaurant in
Benoni, Tvl, on 30 July 1988. One woman was killed and
at least 66 people were injured. Four MK operatives
were granted amnesty for the planning and execution
of the attack (AC/1999/0294).

MALULEKE, Patrick Nyiko , a PAC operative, was
shot dead by members of the SAP in Edenville, OFS,
on 14 October 1992, allegedly while attempting to
leave the country after carrying out a non-combatant
PAC mission.

MALULEKE, Peter (32), an ANC supporter, was
severely beaten with sjamboks by members of the
SAP in Soshanguve, Pretoria, in 1985.

MALULEKE, Thomas , disappeared in Boksburg, Tvl,
on 3 February 1982. He was never seen again.
MALUNDA, Sikowukowu William  (46), a UDF
supporter, was arrested by police in Mbekweni, Paarl,
Cape, on 24 June 1986, after which he was severely
beaten and tortured by named and other members of
the police. He was charged with the attempted
murder of an alleged police informer, but was
acquitted and successfully sued the police.
MALUNGA, Dlanyana (19), an ANC supporter, was
shot dead by a named member of the KwaZuLu PoLice
at Nhlalakahle, Greytown, Natal, in November 1991.
MALUNGA, Mndeni (15), an ANC supporter, was
killed on 18 February 1994, when four gunmen attacked
a house in the rural Mahahle village, near Creighton,
Ixopo, Natal, in which he and other ANC youths were
sleeping. Fifteen ANC youths were killed in the attack.
They had been seen putting up posters announcing a
voter education workshop in preparation for the ApRIL
1994 eLecTIONS. Four prominent IFP leaders were
acquitted on charges relating to the massacre.
MALUNGA, Ntombifuthi Purity  (18), an ANC
supporter, was killed by Inkatha supporters in Port
Shepstone, Natal, on 26 March 1990, following the
UNBANNING Of political organisations in February.
MALUNGA, Sibusiso (21), an ANC supporter, was
shot dead at Nhlalakahle, Greytown, Natal, by a named
member of the KwaZuLu PoLice on 22 December 1991.
MALUNGA, Victoria Zanele (54), had her house
burnt down by IFP supporters at Qinabout, Port
Shepstone, Natal, in May 1991. Ms Malunga was
thought to be an ANC supporter.

MALUNGU, Yengiwe Esther (50), was attacked and
beaten by IFP members in her home at Mtwalume,
near Umzinto, Natal, in October 1990. The
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perpetrators allegedly suspected the family of being
sympathetic to the ANC.

MALUSI, David (28), an ANC member, was stabbed
and injured during ongoing conflict between ANC and
IFP supporters at Camperdown, near Pietermaritzburg,
in 1993. Several family members were shot dead and
others injured in the clashes. The family’s home was
burnt down in political conflict on 14 February 1994.
MALUSI, Dominic (31), an ANC supporter, was shot
dead by other named ANC supporters in Inchanga,
Natal, on 14 February 1994 in the course of a serious
internal feud within the local party branch. His father
and brother had been injured in political clashes in
1993, and his sister had been fatally shot in 1992, also
in the course of internal party conflict.

MALUSI, Lillian Elinah  (17), was shot dead by named
ANC supporters in Inchanga, Natal, on 25 December
1992 during a serious internal feud in the organisation.
MALUSI, Mfenana Jackson (27), lost his home in an
arson attack in KTC, Cape Town, in June 1986, during
the mass destruction of UDF-supporting squatter
camps by WITDOEKE vigilantes, acting with the tacit
approval and aid of the security forces. More than 60
people were killed and over 20 000 homes were burnt
during the attacks.

MALUSI, Ntloko Serial (58), an ANC supporter, had
his house burnt down by named ANC supporters at
Inchanga, Natal, on 14 February 1994 in the course of
a serious internal feud within the local party branch.
His son was killed in the attack. Another son had been
injured in political clashes in 1993, and a daughter had
been fatally shot in 1992, also in the course of internal
party conflict.

MALUSI, Thembile Alfred (22), an ANC and UDF
supporter, was shot dead by members of the SAP on
20 May 1986 during clashes between UDF and
AZAPO supporters in Mbekweni, Paarl, Cape.

MAMA, Louis Bonisile , was shot dead on 29 July 1986
when an MK unit attacked the Madeira police station,
in Umtata, Transkei. At least eight people were killed
in the attack, including members of the SAP, civilians
and one of the MK operatives. One MK operative
applied for and was granted amnesty (AC/2000/240).
MAMA, Nomntu V irginia (46), lost her home in an
arson attack in KTC, Cape Town, on 9 June 1986,
during the mass destruction of UDF-supporting
squatter camps by WITDoOEKE vigilantes, acting with the
tacit approval and aid of the security forces. More than
60 people were killed and over 20 000 homes were
destroyed in the attacks.

MAMA, Shadric Sindile Lhelhe (18), a SAYCO
member, was detained and severely assaulted by
members of the SAP on 4 July 1985 in Port Elizabeth.
MAMANI, Lungisile Matthews (20), a COSAS
member, was shot and injured by named members of
the MunicipAL PoLice and SAP in Joza, Grahamstown,
Cape, on 11 June 1986 during scHooL BOYCOTTS and a
protest against local counciLLors. Mr Mamani had
attended a show at the Noluthando Hall and was on
his way home when pellets were fired at a crowd.
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MAMARQO, Lethole Steve (26), a UDF supporter, was
assaulted and beaten with sjamboks , a wooden beam
and a length of iron cable by members of the SAP in
Sekhukhuneland, Lebowa, on 18 April 1986. Mr Mamaro
was suspected of being a leader of ‘comrades’ and of
instigating necklacings.

MAMATELA, Ronney (6), was shot dead by members
of the Bophuthatswana Police in Tlhabane,
Bophuthatswana, on 25 November 1985. Ronney’s
uncle and two MK operatives living in the house were
also killed.

MAMATELA, Sekeke Maria , was severely ill treated
and suffered damage to property on 17 June 1992 in the
BoIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near Vanderbijlpark,
Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27 seriously
injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted amnesty; a
further three applications were refused (AC/2000/209).
MAMATHO, Molelekeng Claudia (64), chair of the
DIKWANKWETLA NATIONAL PARTY (DNP), had her
house destroyed in an arson attack by UDF supporters
in BOTSHABELO, near Bloemfontein, on 27 July 1989,
allegedly because of her involvement in the DNP.
MAMBA, Alan Ndodomazi ‘Chicks’ , an MK operative,
was arrested in July 1988 and severely tortured by
named members of the SAP and the Western Cape
Security Branch in Cape Town. He was held under
secTioN 29 for six months, after which he was
sentenced to 18 years’ imprisonment for terrorism and
murder. One Security Branch operative was granted
amnesty for his torture (AC/1999/0027).

MAMBA, James , was severely beaten with sjamboks
by members of the SADF on his way home in
Vosloorus, Boksburg, Tvl, on 29 June 1986 during the
state of emergency. There was a curfew in place and
special permission was required to be out after dark.
MAMBONA, Mbulaheni Petr us, sustained damage to
his property in a limpet mine explosion at a bus stop
near the Checkers shopping complex in Silverton, Tvl,
on 4 July 1986. Four MK operatives were granted
amnesty for the attack (AC/1999/0257).

MAMELA, Mkhetwa Chrisopher (17), was assaulted,
shot and tortured by police in KwaThema, Tvl, on 3
February 1986 when he refused to identify activists on
a police videotape. He was also shown pictures of his
friend’s body that had been burnt and was threatened
with the same fate. He was subsequently sentenced
to five years’ imprisonment for murder and malicious
damage to property. He served three years of his
sentence and was granted amnesty on 30 April 1991.
MAMESA, Geor ge, was severely injured when a
limpet mine planted by an MK operative exploded at
the Silverton bus terminus in Mamelodi, Pretoria, on

4 July 1986. The perpetrator applied for amnesty.
MAMKELI, Charles Vuyisile (17), was shot and
injured by members of the SAP near Crossroads, Cape
Town, in 1986, while toyi-toying during protests. A
week later he was severely assaulted by members of
the SAP.

MAMKELI, Nombuyiselo Maria (58), lost her house
in an arson attack by IFP supporters in Inanda, near
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KwaMashu, Durban, in March 1993. Ms Mamekeli lived
in an ANC stronghold.

MAMOGALE, Maralena January (44), was severely
beaten with a sjambok by members of the SAP in
Burgersfort, Tvl, on 17 March 1986 at a meeting to
discuss the water crisis in the area.

MAMOGALE, Wi illiam , was arrested by members of
the SAP in Burgersfort, Tvl, on 17 March 1986 at a
meeting to discuss the water crisis in the area.
MAMOROBELA, Lazarus (19), an ANC supporter,
was arrested and severely beaten by named members
of the Lebowa Police in Ga-Kgapane, Lebowa, on 17
October 1985 during a protest march. He was forced
to walk to the police station with his hands in the air
and was sjambokked there because he was regarded
as an instigator of political activity.

MAMOSADI, Sengange John , was shot dead by a
member of the SADF in Sekhukhuneland, Lebowa, in
April 1986 during protest action against farmers in the
area.

MAMPANE, (first name not given), was shot dead by
members of the SAP at Mhluzi, Middelburg, Tvl, on 21
November 1991 during a protest march against the
harassment and intimidation of scholars by local police.
MAMPANE, Beatrice , was assaulted and verbally
abused in detention by members of the SAP at
Bramley police station, Tvl, on 18 March 1987. Ms
Mampane was pregnant at the time and lost her baby
as a result of the beating.

MAMPANE, Elias Mbopo (40), was severely
assaulted with a sjambok by members of the SAP in
Moutse, KwaNdebele, on 1 January 1986 during
conflict over INCORPORATION into KwaNdebele.
MAMPANE, Prince Seakgosing (25), a citizen of
Botswana, was shot and severely injured, and his car
destroyed, in Gaborone, Botswana, on 14 June 1985
in a cross-border attack launched by the SADF Special
Forces, together with the Security Branch, on ANC
offices and houses in Gaborone, Botswana. Twelve
people were killed and six were wounded in the
operation. See GABORONE RAID.

MAMPE, Bellington (30), a Poqo activist, was severely
ill-treated while in detention in Worcester, Cape, during
1963. He died in hospital while in custody.
MAMPHAGA, Mpho W innet, a UDF supporter, was
detained and tortured by members of the Venda Police
at Secunda, Venda, in January 1986. Mr Maphaga was
involved in the formation of the Northern Transvaal Co-
ordinating Committee, a UDF affiliate at a time when
people were not allowed to participate in political
organisations.

MAMPOFU, Thobeka Elizabeth  (27), an ANC
supporter, was shot and injured by men clad in
balaclavas on 10 September 1993 while attending a
disco in Khayelitsha, Cape Town. Three people were
killed and five injured. The alleged perpetrators, some
of whom are named, were members of an ANC SeLF-
DEFENCE UNIT (SDU) that attacked other ANC supporters
during conflict between ANC groups. See BALACLAVA
GROUPS.
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MAMPURU, Jacob , a Civi member, was shot in the
stomach by unidentified men wearing balaclavas in
Mamelodi, Pretoria, on 11 November 1986 after
attending a political funeral. Mr Mampuru was
hospitalised for 18 months.

MAMPURU, Lillian Buyisiwe (16), was severely beaten
during June 1992 in Tokoza, Tvl, allegedly by members
of the SAP trying to find her brother, a COSAS
member suspected of being an MK member. Lillian
was seven months pregnant at the time and alleges
the attack resulted in the premature birth of her baby.
MAMPURU, Lucky Sibusiso , a COSAS member, was
shot dead by a named member of the SAP on 20
January 1993 in Tokoza, Tvl, allegedly under suspicion
of being an MK operative.

MAMUSA, Amos Madala (14), was shot dead by
members of the SAP in Mabopane, Bophuthatswana,
on 17 June 1976 in the wake of the SOWETO UPRISING.
MAMZI, Julia Khumbuzile (24), an IFP supporter, had
her house in Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near
Durban, burnt down by ANC supporters on 16 March
1994. See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MAN, Thozama Phoebe , was shot dead by members
of the SAP on 10 February 1987 in Port Elizabeth,
allegedly because her boyfriend was a prominent UDF
activist.

MANA, Kholekile (17), an ANC supporter, died when
he was ‘necklaced’ by ‘comrades’ on 4 November
1985 in DuNCAN VILLAGE, East London, allegedly
because he was thought to be a collaborator.

MANA, Mthetheleli Richard (40), an ANC/SACP
supporter, was shot in the arm by a named PAC
supporter in Fort Beaufort, Cape, on 21 February 1993
during political conflict.

MANAKA, George Solly (14), a PAC member, was shot
and injured by members of the SAP in Daveyton, Tvl,
in June 1986 during a night vigil for a UDF supporter.
MANAKA, S , was injured when MK operatives
detonated an explosive in a car outside the South
African Air Force (SAAF) headquarters in Church
Street, Pretoria, on 20 May 1983. Twenty-one people
were killed and 217 injured. The overall commander of
MK'’s Special Operations Unit and two MK operatives
were granted amnesty (AC/2001/003 and AC/2001/023).
See CHURCH STREET BOMBING, PRETORIA.

MANAKA, Spokes , was shot dead by IFP supporters
in Meadowlands, Soweto, Johannesburg, on 28 April
1991. Three family members died in the attack after
the funeral of the slain IFP mayor of Soweto.
MANAKAZA, Levinson Mandisi , an ANC member
from Soweto, was killed on 30 January 1981 in a raid
by SADF Special Forces operatives on three houses in
the Matola suburb of Maputo, Mozambique. Fifteen
other South Africans, including several senior MK
operatives, were killed in the attack. Three of the
attackers (all ex-Rhodesian security force members)
and a Portuguese citizen were also killed.

MANAKE, Alfred (21), was burnt to death in
Jansenville, Cape, on 7 April 1985, allegedly because
he was thought to be a police collaborator.
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MANALI, Laurence Nceba , a UDF supporter, was
shot dead by a member of the SAP in Tembisa, Tvl, on
4 April 1986. Mr Manali was searching a shebeen for
weapons with other UDF supporters when an off-duty
policeman shot him.

MANAMELA, Benjamin (26), was detained in Quatro
camp, Angola, in 1981 and was severely beaten and
tortured by ANC security department members. A
number of ANC members were detained, tortured and
killed during a period of anxiety about infiltration by
South African agents following the SADF bombing of
Nova Catengue camp in 1979.

MANAMELA, Kgabo Daniel (34), had his home in
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of
Chief BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because Mr
Manamela resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence
from South Africa.

MANAMELA, Maphuti Ephraim  (31), had his home
in GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of
Chief BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because Mr
Manamela resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence
from South Africa.

MANAMELA, Meisie Raisibe (18), had her home in
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of
Chief BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because she
resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence from South
Africa.

MANAMELA, Piet (17), was shot and severely injured
by members of the SAP in Siyabuswa, KwaNdebele,
on 1 June 1986 during violent conflict over INCORPO-
RATION into KwaNdebele.

MANAMELA, Pitso Piet (20), an ANC supporter, was
arrested by members of the Venda Police in May 1986
and beaten and tortured because he opposed the
INCORPORATION Of Vleifontein into Venda.

MANAMELA, Raisbe (69), had her home in GaMatlala,
Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of Chief BK
Matlala on 2 February 1980, because she resisted
Lebowa’s proposed independence from South Africa.
MANAMELA, Ramokone (46), had her home in
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of Chief
BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because she resisted
Lebowa’s proposed independence from South Africa.
MANAMELA, Sebitsi Phineas (52), had his home in
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of
Chief BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because Mr
Manamela resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence
from South Africa.

MANAMELA, Tlou Isaac (29), a union shop steward,
was detained at his workplace by members of the
Security Police and subjected to electric shock torture
in Benoni and Heidelberg, Tvl, in 1983. Mr Manamela
was charged with furthering the aims of a banned
organisation and sentenced to four years’ impris-
onment. He was released in 1987.

MANANA, Abel Butana , an ANC supporter, was shot
dead by members of the IFP-aligned TOASTER GANG in
Tembisa, Tvl, in February 1992.

MANANA, Godfrey (17), an ANC supporter, was shot
dead by unidentified perpetrators in Katlehong, Tvl, on
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23 October 1993 during conflict between ANC and IFP
supporters on the East Rand. Mr Manana’s father was
shot dead a month before by unidentified perpetrators.
MANANA, John V elaphi , an ANC supporter, was
shot dead, allegedly by IFP supporters in Katlehong,
Tvl, on 17 September 1993.

MANANA, Kholisekile Lyza (63), had her house burnt
down on 28 March 1990 in KwaShange, KwaZulu,
near Pietermaritzburg, in the SEVEN-DAY WAR.

MANANA, Mfanayedwa Ernest (23), an SAP member,
was stabbed and beaten to death by members of the
ANC-aligned Sivukile Action Committee (SACO) and
patrons of a tavern in Morgenzon, Tvl, on 4 May 1990.
Mr Manana had allegedly refused to heed a consumer
boycott of white-owned shops. Two SACO members
were granted amnesty (AC/1999/0284).

MANANA, Mpikwa , was assaulted by the SAP in
Bizana, Transkei, in March 1960 during the PoNDOLAND
REVOLT.

MANANA, Muzikayise Goodwill  (17), was shot dead
in an attack on a tavern in Daveyton, Tvl, on 8 August
1993 during conflict between IFP and ANC supporters.
Seven people were shot dead and five injured in the
attack.

MANANA, Nodipha , was stabbed to death in
November 1960 at Esikhumbeni, near Bizana,
Transkei, during the PONDOLAND REVOLT.

MANANA, Sicelo Sidney (24), an ANC supporter,
was shot dead in Crossroads, Cape Town, on 10 April
1993, during a series of arson attacks initiated by a
named community leader aimed at removing Section 2
residents by force.

MANANA, Susan Ntozokudla (20), an ANC supporter,
had her house burnt down by IFP supporters in
Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 16
March 1994. See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANANA, Theophilus (24), an AZAPO supporter,
was stabbed by named UDF supporters in Dlamini,
Soweto, Johannesburg, on 26 October 1985.
MANANGANA, Christopher Mlindeli , an ANC
member, had his home burnt down by ADM and PAC
supporters in February 1992 at Upper Mnggesha, near
King William’s Town, Cape.

MANANKONG, Eagile Joseph (42), was assaulted
and tear-gassed by members of the Bophuthatswana
Police at Taung, Bophuthatswana, on 9 October 1988
on his way home from a mass meeting.

MANASE, Fani (26), was shot dead, allegedly by
members of the SAP and the IFP in Tokoza, Tvl, on 11
December 1990 during political conflict in thea area.
MANCAM, Mthobeli , was shot dead by named
members of the SAP on 23 July 1985 at Phakamisa
High School in Zwide, Port Elizabeth. Scholars were
involved in a student protest when police randomly shot
at students, killing two and injuring six others, including
teachers. The perpetrators were found guilty of murder
and attempted murder and were sentenced to ten
years’ imprisonment but did not serve their sentence.
MANCANCENI, Nomgweni , an ANC supporter, had his
house burnt down in May 1993 at Mthinde, Lusikisiki,
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Transkei, during conflict between supporters of
traditional leaders and ANC supporters.

MANCANYW A, Indi David (53), an ANC supporter,
disappeared from Kubedi Street, Vosloorus, Tvl, on 12
September 1990 during political conflict.

MANCE, Zinukile Annatoria  (57), an ANC supporter,
had her house in Ixopo, Natal, burnt down by IFP
supporters on 12 October 1993.

MANCENJANE, John (58), was burnt to death in
New Crossroads, Cape Town, on 6 January 1986,
during conflict between vigilantes from Crossroads
and UDF supporters from New Crossroads.
MANCHESA, Tefo T imothy , was shot dead by
members of the SAP during scHooL BoycoTTs at Langa,
Uitenhage, Cape, on 17 November 1980.

MANCI, Dimanda (62), an ANC supporter, was
severely beaten by named perpetrators in Flagstaff,
Transkei, on 13 December 1992 during conflict between
ANC supporters and other residents in the area.
MANCI, Gcinephi Saraphina  (35), an IFP supporter,
had her house in Polela, Bulwer, Natal, burnt down by
ANC supporters in June 1993.

MANCI, Majorie Nopiwa (50), an ANC supporter, was
shot as she fled from her burning house in Kwa-
Makhutha, Amanzimtoti, near Durban, on 25
November 1990, in an attack by members of the
KwaZuLu PoLICE.

MANCI, Ms (first name not given) (60), was shot dead
when the house she was visiting was attacked by IFP
supporters at Umbumbulu, KwaZulu, near Durban, on
29 October 1993, during continuing political conflict in
the area.

MANDABANA, Moses Siphiwo (18), a COSAS
member, was shot and severely beaten by a named
member of the SAP at St Stephen’s Church in New
Brighton, Port Elizabeth, on 5 November 1985 during
the state of emergency. See POLICE BRUTALITY.
MANDEKA, Lulamile (19), a UDF supporter, was shot
dead by members of the MuniciPAL PoLIcE in Veeplaas,
near Port Elizabeth, on 16 August 1986 during a state
of emergency.

MANDITA, Nomangwana , was stoned and necklaced
to death in Fort Beaufort, Cape, on 21 February 1993,
after she and another woman suspected of links to
the PAC were abducted and interrogated by a large
crowd of ANC Youth League members. One
perpetrator applied for and was granted amnesty for
his role in the kidnapping (AC/1997/0022).

MANDLA, Solomon Amos Ndlanga , was injured in a
limpet mine explosion in a bus in Durban on 30
November 1993. The mine had been planted by APLA
operatives. Three perpetrators were granted amnesty
(AC/1998/0076).

MANDLAKAPHELI, Nor man, was shot dead by IFP
supporters at a traffic light near Nancefield hostel in
Soweto, Johannesburg, during an IFP march to Shell
House, the ANC headquarters on 28 March 1993.
MANDLAKAZI, Lolo Beauty , had her home at
KwaShange, KwaZulu, near Pietermaritzburg, set alight
by Inkatha supporters on 28 March 1990, during the
SEVEN-DAY WAR.
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MANDLAZI, David (22), was shot dead by named
members of the SAP in Duduza, Nigel, Tvl, on 18 May
1985 during conflict between residents and security
forces when police tried to disperse mourners at a
funeral.

MANDLAZI, Solomon (43), an SAP member, was
hacked and buried alive by UDF supporters at the
Pretoria memorial cemetery, on 30 May 1986. Police
officers were perceived at the time as legitimate
targets in the political struggle.

MANDLENI, Zimoshile (34), a UDF supporter, was
detained by named members of the SAP during a
consumer boycott in Stutterheim, Cape, on 29
September 1985.

MANELI, Bubele Jef frey (20), a UDF supporter, was
shot dead by a named member of the SAP while he
was monitoring a consumer boycott in New Brighton,
Port Elizabeth, on 6 September 1985.

MANELI, Eric Thembinkosi Steri  (31), an ANC
supporter, was detained and tortured by members of
the Ciskei Police in August 1991 in Seymour, Ciskei.
MANELI, Nonzwakazi Iris  (24), a UDF supporter, was
tear-gassed by named members of the SAP in the
police station at Klipplaat, Cape, in 1985. It is believed
that the police wanted information from her about the
launch of a new branch of the UDF

MANELI, Nosipho Mavis (44), a Cookhouse Women’s
Organisation chairperson, was kept in solitary
confinement for two months from 29 August 1986 at
Somerset police station, Cookhouse, Cape.

MANELI, Simphiwe Sidwell Mpaydo  (14), was
arrested on 13 May 1986 at his home in Port Alfred,
Cape, for being involved in the stoning of a vehicle
during scHooL BoycoTTs. He was convicted and
sentenced to five years’ imprisonment, half of which
was suspended.

MANELI, Thandeka Lillian Ntshakaza  (24), an ANC
supporter, was shot and injured by members of the
SAP in Port Alfred, Cape, on 16 November 1984, when
police opened fire on mourners returning from a burial.
MANENTSA, Moffat Nkosana (50), a SAYCO
member, was assaulted and repeatedly detained, from
1981 until his release in 1991, by alleged Ciskei Police
and Security Branch members in Alice, Ciskei.
MANENTSA, Sibongile (18), was shot and injured by
members of the Ciskei Police in Mdantsane, Ciskei, on
11 February 1990, after a rally celebrating the release
of Nelson Mandela.

MANENTSA, Siphiwo Harry , (27), was shot and
injured by members of the SAP in Khayelitsha, Cape
Town, on 13 September 1991, during a period of
conflict between rival taxi associations that had a
political dimension. Numerous allegations were made
regarding SAP support for one of the associations. See
TAXI VIOLENCE.

MANGA, Siphiwo , was shot dead by named members
of the SAP on 23 July 1985 at Phakamisa High School
in Zwide, Port Elizabeth. Scholars were involved in a
student protest when police randomly shot at students,
killing two and injuring six others, including teachers.
The perpetrators were found guilty of murder and
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attempted murder and were sentenced to ten years’
imprisonment but did not serve their sentence.
MANGALE, Talitha Kebawetse (26), was burnt to
death by members of the ‘Gadaffi’ faction in Khutsong,
Carletonville, Tvl, in 1991 after the ANC in the area
split into two rival groups, the ‘Gadaffis’ and the ‘Zim-
zims’. Conflict between them left at least 20 people
dead in the area. See also KHUTSONG YouTH CONGRESS.
MANGALLI, Elliot Petse (31), was shot and injured
during the attacks by WiTpoEeke vigilantes and members
of the SAP in Crossroads, Cape Town, during 1986. He
was again shot and injured in 1993 during conflict in
Crossroads.

MANGALI, Nicholas Xolani  (19), a COSAS member,
was severely beaten in detention by members of the
SAP in Adelaide, Cape, on 12 April 1985 during political
conflict in which a policeman’s house was burnt down.
MANGANE, Thomas (31), an ANC supporter, was
shot dead by an MK operative at his home in Mbuzini,
Komatipoort, Tvl, on 10 January 1990, because he was
believed to be an informer. The MK operative was
granted amnesty (AC/1999/0255).

MANGANYE, Robson , was injured when MK
operatives detonated an explosive in a car outside the
South African Air Force (SAAF) headquarters in Church
Street, Pretoria, on 20 May 1983. Twenty-one people
were killed and 217 injured. The overall commander of
MK’s Special Operations Unit and two MK operatives
were granted amnesty (AC/2001/003 and AC/2001/023).
See CHURCH STREET BOMBING, PRETORIA.

MANGANY]I, Joshua Ntsako Mandela  (21), an ANCYL
member, was assaulted and severely tortured by
members of the SAP in Tzaneen, Tvl, on 20 June 1990.
MANGANYI, Lucky , was shot in Tembisa, Tvl, on

14 August 1992.

MANGAYI, STEPHEN (20), a COSAS member, was
shot dead by members of the SAP in Sebokeng, Tvl,
on 3 September 1984 when police opened fire on a
student-led rent protest.

MANGAYI, Steven , was shot dead in Sebokeng, Tvl,
on 4 September 1984 by members of the SAP
avenging an injured colleague during the VAAL UPRISING.
At the inquest, the family were told their son was
killed by ‘mistake’.

MANGAZI, Bonakalisiwe Maggie (43), had her
homestead in Ntuze, KwaZulu, near Empangeni, Natal,
burnt down on 2 September 1993 in continuing
conflict between IFP and ANC supporters in the area.
MANGAZI, Mandlakhe , a member of the ANCYL,
was stabbed to death by IFP supporters in Ebuhleni,
KwaZulu, near Empangeni, Natal, on 15 April 1994
during the run-up to the APRIL 1994 ELECTIONS.
MANGCANGAZA, Lungile (44), a member of the
Alexandria Residents’ Association, was arrested under
emergency regulations on 14 June 1986 at Alexandria,
Cape. Mr Mangcangaza was detained on various
occasions between June 1986 and November 1988,
and at different locations in and around Port Elizabeth.
MANGCATSHA, Melton , was severely beaten, by
members of the SADF, on 27 July 1991 in Alexandra,

VOLUME 7 Victim findings: Summaries

Johannesburg, during conflict between IFP and ANC
supporters.

MANGCOLA, Vuyisile John (24), a UDF supporter,
was severely beaten on his arrest in Zolani, Ashton,
Cape, on 20 November 1985, by named vigilantes and
SAP members. Mr Mangcola was one of more than
100 Zolani residents arrested and accused of burning
the homes of AmasoLomzi vigilantes. Thirty-two were
finally sentenced to prison terms. He was detained
awaiting trial for ten months and served a prison
sentence until 1991.

MANGCW AGULE, Svelinkomo (39), had his house
burnt down by IFP supporters during political conflict
between the ‘ReD’ AND ‘GREEN’ FACTIONS in Bhambayi,
near KwaMashu, Durban, in 1993.

MANGE, Barbara Priscilla  (33), was shot in the neck
by members of the SADF in a random shooting while
visiting Soweto, Johannesburg, on 10 November 1985
during intense conflict in the area.

MANGE, Siboniwe Cyprian , an ANC supporter, was
abducted and killed by named members of the IFP-
aligned TOASTER GANG in Tembisa, Tvl, on 14 February
1993. Mr Mange was abducted with his girlfriend who
was forced to witness his killing before being raped.
MANGELE, Musa Oswald (37), an ANC supporter,
had his home burnt down by a member of the KwaZuLu
PoLice at Esikhawini, KwaZulu, near Empangeni, Natal,
on 8 May 1992, during ongoing political conflict in the
area.

MANGELE, Sibuyiselo Sidney , an employee of Rand
Water, was shot dead by members of an ANC self-
defence unit (SDU) while he was travelling in a taxi
past the informal settlement of Phola Park in Tokoza,
Tvl, on 26 February 1992. Four people died and eight
were injured. One SDU member was granted amnesty
for the attack on the taxi (AC/1999/0225).
MANGEMPUKU, Tabankulu (42), had his house in
Bhambayi, near KwaMashu, Durban, burnt down in
1993 in intense political conflict between the ‘RED’ AND
‘GREEN’ FACTIONS.

MANGENA, Phillip Comfort (aka ‘Drake Chiloane’)
(32), an MK member, was reported to the Commission
as missing by his family. The Commission established
that Mr Mangena had gone into exile to join the ANC
and had been executed on the order of an ANC
military tribunal in 1982 in Angola. A number of ANC
members were detained, tortured and killed during a
period of anxiety about infiltration by South African
agents following the SADF bombing of Nova Catengue
camp in 1979.

MANGERA, Mohamed Ahmed (57), had his home
petrol-bombed by a named perpetrator in Forest Hill,
Johannesburg, on 6 April 1989 reportedly because he
was living in a white area.

MANGOAKE, Tshekishi Phineas (59), had his house
at GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of
Chief BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because Mr
Mangoake resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence
from South Africa.
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MANGOANE, Fanie Stephen , a member of the SAP,
was shot and injured by MK operatives in Meadowlands,
Soweto, Johannesburg, on 29 January 1988. The
perpetrators ambushed and fired at the police vehicle,
injuring four persons. Two MK operatives applied for
amnesty. One withdrew his application and the other
was granted amnesty (AC/2000/134).

MANGONA, Mbulelo (23), was shot dead by members
of the CDF in Bisho, Ciskei, on 7 September 1992
during an ANC protest march to demand free political
activity in Ciskei. Thirty people were killed and 200
people injured in the event which became known as
the BisHo MAassAcRe. Two members of the former CDF
were refused amnesty for the shooting (AC/2000/122).
MANGQANGW ANA, Mpolose Paulos (27), a Pogo
member, was sentenced to 18 years’ imprisonment
on Robben Island on 15 December 1966 in Bellville,
Cape Town. He had been arrested repeatedly since
1962 in connection with his political activities.
MANGQIKANA, Right , a Pogo member, was
executed with fourteen others in Pretoria Central
prison, on 3 March 1964 after they were convicted for
the killing of five whites in February 1963 near
Mbashe River in the Transkei.

MANGQOBA, Assistant Malungelo (31), was
severely beaten by members of the SADF in Alexandra,
Johannesburg, on 27 July 1991 during conflict between
IFP and ANC supporters.

MANGWANY ANA, Bongekile (48), an ANC supporter,
had her house burnt down by IFP supporters in
KwaMthethwa, KwaZulu, near Empangeni, Natal, on
16 December 1992.

MANGWEJANE, Morwagaabusi George  (23), was
severely beaten and tortured by members of the SAP
after his arrest in Jouberton, Klerksdorp, Tvl, on 21
March 1986 during political conflict in the area.
MANGWELE, Nkete Welhelmina (63), was seriously
assaulted by AWB supporters in Tshing, Ventersdorp,
Tvl, on 11 May 1991. The perpetrators destroyed
property and assaulted various residents in this
informal settlement, accusing them of squatting
illegally in the area.

MANGWENI, Tsalikhuba Thomas  (46), lost his home,
shop and all his possessions in an arson attack in
Nyanga, Cape Town, in May 1986, during the mass
destruction of UDF-supporting informal settlements by
WITDOEKE vigilantes acting with the tacit approval and
aid of the security forces.

MANI, Andile (8 months), died from a heart attack
when members of the SAP, on patrol in Soweto, Port
Elizabeth, fired teargas into the yard of the family home
in February 1985.

MANI, Mhlo Phegi Daniel (37), was forced to drink
petrol and was then stabbed to death by UDF supporters
in Mohlakeng, Randfontein, Tvl, on 27 April 1986
because of his friendship with a policeman. Mr Mani’s
body was burnt when the owner of the house where
the service was to be held refused to accept his body.
MANI, Motlagomane Johanna (30), was harassed
and intimidated by ANC supporters in April 1986.
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MANINJW A, Fikile Eric (22), was shot by members
of the SAP in Dobsonville, Soweto, Johannesburg, on
6 August 1976 in the aftermath of the Soweto
UPRISING. His leg was amputated as a result.

MANISI, Febr uary, a member of the ANCYL, was
arrested on arson charges in Colesberg, Cape, on 12
September 1992, and was tortured by named members
of the SAP. He was acquitted of the arson charges.
MANJATHI, Boyi (18 months), was shot dead in a
vehicle by a naval guard at a roadblock in Nyanga,
Cape Town, on 1 April 1960. Boyi’s family was trying
to take him to hospital during the curfew imposed
after the Pass Law protests.

MANJATI, Mcebisi, a COSAS member, was assaulted
with batons by members of the SAP at the police
station in Alicedale, Cape, on 15 September 1986
during a state of emergency. See POLICE BRUTALITY.
MANJO, Thamsanga Gorden (21), a COSAS member,
was detained and assaulted by named members of the
Security Branch in Parys, OFS, on several occasions
from 18 April 1986, allegedly because he was organising
SCHOOL BOYCOTTS.

MANKAHLANE, Parks , survived an attempt on his life
by SADF members at his home in Nelspruit, Tvl, on an
unspecified date between 1987 and 1989. Mr
Mankahlane, whom they believed to be an ANC
supporter, managed to escape. One perpetrator was
granted amnesty (AC/2001/277).

MANKAYI, Arthur, was hacked with axes and pangas
by hostel-dwellers in Mzimhlophe, Soweto, Johannes-
burg, on 24 August 1976. Two of his brothers were
killed with him when violence erupted after the State
used hostel-dwellers in their brutal suppression of the
SOWETO UPRISING.

MANKAYI, Benjamin (22), was hacked with pangas
by hostel-dwellers in Mzimhlophe, Soweto, Johannes-
burg, on 24 August 1976. Two of his brothers were
killed with him when violence erupted after the State
used hostel-dwellers in their brutal suppression of the
SOWETO UPRISING.

MANKAYI, Lesley Gcinikhaya (23), an SAYCO
member, was detained by members of the SAP in
Steynsburg, Cape, on 5 October 1985, allegedly
because he was suspected of arson.

MANKUMBA, Mason Mlindeli , a security guard, died
when he was shot by APLA operatives during an armed
robbery at the Universityof the Transkei in Umtata,
Transkei, on 18 February 1993. The perpetrators robbed
the university of R500 000, shot Mr Mankumba and
injured two other people. See APLA ATTACcks. One
perpetrator was granted amnesty (AC/2000/106).
MANKUNGU, Daniel Manoko (26), was shot and
seriously injured by members of the SAP in Langa,
Cape Town, on 21 March 1960. Police opened fire on
a large crowd who had gathered to protest against the
Pass Laws, Killing three people and injuring many more.
MANKUNGU, Gxiva (50), an ANC supporter, was
assaulted by members of the SAP in KwaMakhutha,
Amanzimtoti, near Durban, on 6 January 1986. Mr
Mankungu was allegedly defending himself against
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attackers armed with spears and assegais, when
police arrived and assaulted him, burnt down his
house and detained him for three days.
MANKUROANE, Beauty Monnye (28), was severely
beaten by named Bophuthatswana Police in Taung,
Bophuthatswana, on 19 September 1988 because she
supported deposed Chief Mankuroane.
MANKUROANE, Elizabeth Mamatchaba (17), was
tear-gassed and severely assaulted by members of the
Bophuthatswana Police in Taung, Bophuthatswana, on
14 September 1988 during conflict over the Taung
chieftaincy.

MANKUROANE, Emelda (51), was severely beaten
by members of the Bophuthatswana Police at Taung,
Bophuthatswana, in September 1988 during conflict
over the Taung chieftaincy.

MANKUROANE, John (18), died a week after being
severely beaten by members of the Bophuthatswana
Police at Taung police station, Bophuthatswana, in
1988. He was allegedly arrested because of his
opposition to Chief Molale.

MANKUROANE, Matshidisho Monica  (19), was
severely beaten with batons by members of the
Bophuthatswana Police in Taung, Bophuthatswana, on
14 September 1988 when police invaded Taung looking
for Chief Mankuroane who was involved in political
conflict with Bophuthatswana President Mangope.
MANKUROANE, Samuel Morwagaabusi  (33), was
tortured in detention in Mafikeng, Bophuthatswana, in
April 1988 for supporting UDF during conflict between
President Mangope and deposed Chief Mankuroane.
MANKURUANE, Ruth (39), was severely beaten by
members of the Bophuthatswana Police in Taung,
Bophuthatswana, on 13 March 1992 when police tried
to disperse a protest march in the village.

MANNS, Ruben , an ANC member, was assaulted,
hacked and burnt to death on 1 August 1993 by
members of KHUMALO GANG, an IFP-aligned vigilante
group after being directed with five other ANC
supporters to Khumalo Street, Tokoza, Tvl, where the
gang was based.

MANONG, Emily (68), was seriously burnt in an arson
attack by UDF supporters at her home in Victoria West,
Cape, on 3 December 1985. She died of her injuries
on 7 December. Several family members were also
injured in the arson attack. It was the third attack on
their home that year, allegedly because her son was a
local COUNCILLOR.

MANONG, Ger trude (28), was injured in an arson
attack on her family home by a group of UDF supporters
in Victoria West, Cape, on 3 December 1985, allegedly
because her brother was a local councILLOR. Ms
Manong’s mother was fatally injured in the attack that
was the third on their home that year.

MANONG, Mbulelo (9), was injured in an arson attack
on his family home by UDF supporters on 3 December
1985 in Victoria West, Cape.

MANONG, Mzolisi Wiseman (12), was injured in an
arson attack on his family home by UDF supporters on
3 December 1985 in Victoria West, Cape.
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MANONG, Nozuko Denise (6), was injured in an
arson attack on her family home by UDF supporters
on 3 December 1985 in Victoria West, Cape.
MANONG, Owen Siyabulela (9), was injured in an
arson attack on his family home by UDF supporters on
3 December 1985 in Victoria West, Cape.

MANONG, V ernon Moyisisi (11), was injured in an
arson attack on his family home by UDF supporters on
3 December 1985 in Victoria West, Cape.

MANOTO, Beverley , suffered severe injuries at her
home in Diepkloof, Soweto, Johannesburg, on 21 April
1993, when she was assaulted by a crowd of residents,
ANC and ANCYL members. The attack had been
directed against her father, who was accused of giving
information to the police. Her father and brother were
killed and set alight and two other family members
were assaulted. Six ANCYL members were granted
amnesty (AC/2001/127).

MANOTO, Jacob , was killed and set alight at his home
in Diepkloof, Soweto, Johannesburg, on 21 April 1993,
by a crowd of residents, ANC and ANCYL members.
The attack had been directed against his father who
was accused of giving information to the police. His
father was also killed and set alight and three other
family members were assaulted. Six ANCYL members
were granted amnesty (AC/2001/127).

MANOTO, Mar vin, suffered severe injuries at his home
in Diepkloof, Soweto, Johannesburg, when assaulted
by a crowd of residents, ANC and ANCYL members.
The attack had been directed against his father who
was accused of giving information to the police. His
father and brother were killed and set alight and two
other family members were assaulted. Six ANCYL
members were granted amnesty (AC/2001/127).
MANOTO, Mary , suffered severe injuries at her
home in Diepkloof, Soweto, Johannesburg, on 21
April 1993, when assaulted by a crowd of residents,
ANC and ANCYL members. The attack had been
directed against her father who was accused of
giving information to the police. Her father and
brother were killed and set alight and two other
family members were assaulted. Six ANCYL
members were granted amnesty (AC/2001/127).
MANOTSI, Oheni Hendrick (3), was shot in crossfire
by named members of the SAP in Kutloanong,
Odendaalsrus, OFS, on 15 November 1986. He died a
short time later. The boy was playing in his yard at
home when he was hit.

MANQA, David T shikelo , was shot and his house was
destroyed by a known chief and members of the SAP in
Bizana, Transkei, in 1960 during the PONDOLAND REVOLT.
MANQA, Ntsoaki Rebecca (24), was seriously injured
when ANC supporters threw a hand grenade into her
relative’s house in Sebokeng, Tvl, on 28 April 1992
because a family member was an IFP supporter. One
person was killed, another subsequently died, and two
others injured in the explosion.

MANQELE, Bongani (15), had his home at
Nhlangenyoka, KwaZulu, near Mtunzini, Natal, set on
fire on 23 April 1994 during political conflict between
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ANC and IFP supporters in the run-up to the ApRIL
1994 eLecTIONS. The family were asleep when their
home was attacked. They managed to escape but the
rondavels were completely destroyed.

MANQELE, Cebisile (13), had her home at
Nhlangenyoka, KwaZulu, near Mtunzini, Natal, set on
fire on 23 April 1994 during political conflict between
ANC and IFP supporters in the run-up to the ArRIL
1994 ELECcTIONS. The family were asleep when their
home was attacked. They managed to escape, but the
rondavels were completely destroyed.

MANQELE, Khetiwe (11), had her home at
Nhlangenyoka, KwaZulu, near Mtunzini, Natal, set on
fire on 23 April 1994 during political conflict between
ANC and IFP supporters in the run-up to the AprRIL
1994 eLecTioNs. The family were asleep when their
home was attacked. They managed to escape, but the
rondavels were completely destroyed.

MANQELE, Mandlakapheli Hendry (25), an ANC
supporter, had his house burnt down by IFP
supporters in Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near
Durban, on 25 February 1994. About 20 deaths of
victims from both the IFP and the ANC and at least 28
incidents of house burning were recorded that month.
Hundreds of people were forced to flee the area, and
schools and shops were forced to close.

MANQELE, Mpliseni (17), had his home at
Nhlangenyoka, KwaZulu, near Mtunzini, Natal, set on
fire on 23 April 1994 during political conflict between
ANC and IFP supporters in the run-up to the ApRIL
1994 eLecTIONS. The family were asleep when their
home was attacked. They managed to escape, but the
rondavels were completely destroyed.

MANQELE, Myekeni George (64), a local IFP
chairman, was shot dead by unidentified persons in
Nqutu, KwaZulu, near Vryheid, Natal, on 22 December
1992, allegedly in a targeted killing.

MANQELE, Mzandile , was shot dead in Mandini,
Natal, on 9 August 1993, in ongoing conflict between
ANC and IFP supporters in the area.

MANQELE, Sipho (21), had his home at Nhlangenyoka,
KwaZulu, near Mtunzini, Natal, set on fire on 23 April
1994 during political conflict between ANC and IFP
supporters in the run-up to the ArRIL 1994 ELECTIONS.
The family were asleep when their home was
attacked. They managed to escape, but the rondavels
were completely destroyed.

MANQELE, Tandekile (50), had her homestead burnt
down in Nhlangenyoka, KwaZulu, near Mtunzini, Natal,
on 23 April 1994 in political conflict between IFP and
ANC supporters during the run-up to the ApriL 1994
ELECTIONS.

MANQELE, Velile, was shot and severely injured by
members of the KwaZuru Police (KZP) in Eshowe,
Natal, on 4 May 1991, when the car in which she was
travelling was ambushed as she was returning from
visiting relatives whose house had been burnt down
by IFP supporters and members of the KZP. Another
passenger was also injured in the attack, and the
driver of the car was killed.
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MANQINA, Shumi (50), was assaulted on 18 October
1985 at Aloevale, near Queenstown, Cape, during
conflict between communities in the area.

MANQINDI, Sikhumbuzo (26), died after he was
‘necklaced’ by UDF supporters and Hofmeyr Youth
Congress members in November 1985 at Hofmeyr,
Cape. The perpetrators accused Mr Mangindi of being
a collaborator.

MANS, Michael Nicholas , was injured when members
of MK’s Special Operations Unit detonated an explosive
in a car outside the SADF Witwatersrand Command
headquarters in Johannesburg on 30 July 1987. At
least 68 people were injured. Three MK operatives and
one UDF supporter linked to MK were granted
amnesty for their roles in this attack (AC/2001/0003
and AC/2000/248).

MANTENGU, Bheki , was abducted from KwaSithebe,
KwaZulu, near Empangeni, Natal, on 9 April 1990,
allegedly by members of the KwaZuLu PoLice who
forced him into a police van because he was partici-
pating in a stayaway organised by COSATU. He has
not been seen since.

MANTEWU, No-once Maggie (52), lost her home in
an arson attack during protests in Cookhouse, Cape, in
August 1986.

MANTILE, Jane Msuthukazi (33), was shot dead by a
named members of the MuniciPAL PoLice during
political conflict in Grahamstown, Cape, on 2 February
1987. Four other people died in the incident.
MANTILE, Johnson Phikile (40), was shot dead by a
named SpeciAL CONSTABLE on 2 February 1987 in
Grahamstown, Cape.

MANTLANE, Sisa James (56), was detained and
severely beaten by named AmasoLomzi vigilantes and
members of the SAP, in Ashton, Cape, on 24 May
1986, following a funeral and house-to-house search
by police. About 108 people were arrested and 22
injured, eight of them seriously. Mr Mantlane was
released after three months’ detention under
emergency regulations. See pOLICE BRUTALITY.
MANTUTLE, Imameleng Lor raine (21), was shot by
members of the SADF at Dukathole, Aliwal North,
Cape, on 21 August 1985. See ALiwAL NORTH
SHOOTINGS.

MANTYI, Albert Zithulele Style  (27), an ANC
supporter, was shot and injured by a member of the
SAP in Venterstad, Cape, on 4 July 1993. Mr Mantyi
was on his way home from a church service at Nozizwe
location when he was fired at from a police vehicle.
MANTYI, Alfr ed, was shot and killed by ANC/FAWU
members during a period of conflict between ANC and
IFP-supporting workers at the Langeberg Food factory,
in Boksburg, Tvl, in September 1991. One ANC
member was granted amnesty for the killing
(AC/1998/0080).

MANTYI, Booi , was shot dead by members of the
SAP on 16 June 1985 in De Aar, Cape, for allegedly
throwing stones at the police. About 71 people,
mostly youth, were arrested by the police after a
demonstration in front of the local shopping centre.
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MANTYI, Pawulosi (23), was shot dead by members
of the CDF in Bisho, Ciskei, on 7 September 1992
during an ANC protest march to demand free political
activity in Ciskei. Thirty people were killed and 200
people injured in the event which became known as
the BisHo MASSACRE. Two members of the former CDF
were refused amnesty for the shooting (AC/2000/122).
MANTYI, Sikhulu (33), an ANC supporter, was
severely beaten during interrogation by members of
the SAP in detention in Witbank, Tvl, in April 1969. He
was later transferred to Pretoria prison and kept in
solitary confinement.

MANUEL, Moses, a private security guard, was shot
and killed during a cash-in-transit robbery by APLA
operatives at Cleveland, Johannesburg, on 20
September 1991. See APLA atTAcks. Three APLA
members were granted amnesty (AC/1999/0244).
MANUEL, Shaun Norman (14), was shot and
severely beaten by members of the SAP in
Manenberg, Cape Town, on 29 August 1985, in the
aftermath of the PoLLsMOOR MARCH to demand the
release of Nelson Mandela.

MANY AKA, Jan Makgale , was abducted from his
home in Kgobokwane, KwaNdebele, by ImBokobo
vigilantes and assaulted on 1 January 1986 during
conflict over INCORPORATION into KwaNdebele.

MANY AKA, Monnana Abram  (43), was severely
beaten with knobkerries and sjamboks , allegedly by
KwaNdebele Police, soldiers and ImsBokobo members,
in Moutse, KwaNdebele, on 1 January 1986. He was
arrested for allegedly abducting residents supporting
INCORPORATION into KwaNdebele. The case was
dropped and he received an out-of-court settlement.
MANY AKA, Mosimpila Lucas (42), was abducted
from his home in Moutse, KwaNdebele, and assaulted
by ImBokoDo vigilantes on 1 January 1986 during
conflict over INcORPORATION into KwaNdebele.
MANYAKANY AKA, Nobuzwe (22), an ANC member,
was assaulted by members of the CDF at Dikidikana,
near King William’s Town, Cape, on 6 September 1992
during political conflict.

MANY AKI, Passman Stukuna (22), a PAC supporter,
was assaulted and tortured by members of the SAP
while he was in detention in Burgersdorp, Cape, in
June 1963. Police allegedly wanted information from
him on PAC activities.

MANY AMALALA, Elbin Thandabantu , an ANC
supporter, was killed by IFP supporters coming back
from an IFP rally in White City, Soweto, Johannesburg,
on 8 September 1991. Several others were killed by
IFP supporters that day.

MANYAMALALA, Simon , a warrant officer in the
SAP, was killed when members of MK’s ‘Dolphin Unit’
detonated an explosive in a car near the Krugersdorp
Magistrate’s court and the adjacent police station, Tvl,
on 16 March 1988. Three people were killed and more
than 20 were injured in the blast. Two MK operatives
were granted amnesty (AC/2001/003).

MANY AMALALA, Thandabantu Elbin  (50), was
killed by IFP supporters coming back from a rally in
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Soweto, Johannesburg, on 8 September 1991. He
was in a car with his wife when people in the crowd
pursued them, firing into the car before beating and
hacking him to death with knobkerries and assegais.
MANY ANGA, Bhekokwakhe (45), an ANC supporter,
was shot dead by fellow ANC supporters in Esikhawini,
KwaZulu, near Empangeni, Natal, on 7 April 1993 in
the course of a serious internal feud within the local
party branch.

MANYANY A, Simon (44), an ANC supporter, was
severely beaten by members of the CDF during a bus
boycott in Mdantsane, Ciskei, on August 1990.

MANY ASHE, Zilindile (14), a COSAS member, was
shot dead by members of the SAP in Uitenhage,
Cape, on 10 April 1993 during protests following the
kiling of ANC/SACP/MK leader, Chris Hani.

MANY ATHI, Fakazile (43), had her house burnt down
by ANC supporters at Blood River, near Dundee, Natal,
in April 1994 in intense political conflict in the area
during the run-up to the APRIL 1994 ELECTIONS.
MANYATHI, Thabo Benedict (20), an ANC supporter,
was detained under emergency regulations in
Sibongile, Dundee, Natal, in August 1988 and held in
custody for three months, allegedly because of his
political activities.

MANYEFANA, Thembelani Stanley  (20), a UDF
supporter, was beaten to death by AZAPO members
in Mbekweni, Paarl, Cape, on 19 May 1986, during
clashes between AZAPO and UDF supporters.
MANYELO, Alfred Moloko , was stabbed and injured
when his family was attacked in Katlehong, Tvl,
allegedly by IFP supporters, on 10 September 1990
during political conflict in the area. Mr Manyelo’s wife,
his son, his daughter, and grand-daughter were also
injured and two other daughters died in the attack.
MANYELO, Asnath Noko (55), was stabbed and
injured when her family was attacked in Katlehong,
Tvl, allegedly by IFP supporters, on 10 September
1990 during political conflict in the area. Ms Manyelo’s
husband, her son, her daughter, and her grand-
daughter were also injured and two daughters died in
the attack.

MANYELO, Benjamin Mmatlou (26), was shot and
injured when his family was attacked in Katlehong, Tvl,
allegedly by IFP supporters, on 10 September 1990
during political conflict in the area. Mr Manyelo’s
mother, his father, his sister, and his niece were also
injured, and two other sisters died in the same attack.
MANYELO, Christinah Makwena (22), was stabbed
and injured when her family was attacked in
Katlehong, Tvl, allegedly by IFP supporters, on 10
September 1990, during political conflict in the area.
Ms Manyelo’s father, her mother, her brother, and her
daughter were also injured and two other sisters died
in the same attack.

MANYELO, Eunice Matshidiso Mmakwena , was
shot and killed when her family was attacked in
Katlehong, Tvl, allegedly by IFP supporters, on 10
September 1990 during political conflict in the area.
Ms Manyelo’s father, her mother, her brother and her
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niece were also injured and another sister died in the
same attack.

MANYELO, Katleho Cavin , was stabbed and injured
when her family was attacked in Katlehong, Tvl,
allegedly by IFP supporters, on 10 September 1990
during political conflict in the area. Katleho’s mother,
her grandfather, her grandmother, and her uncle were
also injured and two aunts died in the same attack.
MANYELO, Winnie Phuti , was stabbed to death
when her family was attacked in Katlehong, Tvl,
allegedly by IFP supporters, on 10 September 1990
during political conflict in the area. Her father, her
mother, her brother, her sister and her niece were
injured and another sisters died in the same attack.
MANYESE, Agnes , was shot and injured when
gunmen opened fire on residents in Ivory Park,
Tembisa, Tvl, on 14 August 1992 in violent conflict
during a taxi boycott. The taxi industry in the area at
the time was controlled by IFP-aligned groups. Several
others were killed and injured in the attack.

MANY], Sile Sipho (27), an IFP supporter, was
stabbed to death in Mevamhlophe, KwaZulu, near
Empangeni, Natal, on 28 December 1992 during
ongoing conflict between ANC and IFP supporters in
the area.

MANYIKA, Andries , was killed on 17 June 1992 in the
BoIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near Vanderbijlpark,
Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27 seriously
injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted amnesty; a
further three applications were refused (AC/2000/209).
MANYIKA, Dinah , was killed on 17 June 1992 in the
BoIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near Vanderbijlpark,
Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27 seriously
injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted amnesty; a
further three applications were refused (AC/2000/209).
MANYIKA, Maphati Linah , was killed on 17 June
1992 in the BOIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near
Vanderbijlpark, Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27
seriously injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted
amnesty; a further three applications were refused
(AC/2000/209).

MANYIKA, Megete Andries , was killed on 17 June
1992 in the BOIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near
Vanderbijlpark, Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27
seriously injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted
amnesty; a further three applications were refused
(AC/2000/209).

MANYIKA, Sibongile Dinah , had her house destroyed
by arson on 17 June 1992 in the BOIPATONG MASSACRE
in Boipatong, near Vanderbijlpark, Tvl, which left 45
people dead and 27 seriously injured. Thirteen
perpetrators were granted amnesty; a further three
applications were refused (AC/2000/209).

MANYISA, Loveness , was shot and injured in Ivory
Park, Tembisa, Tvl, on 14 August 1992 during conflict
over a taxi boycott. The taxi industry in the area at the
time was controlled by IFP-aligned groups. Several
others were killed or injured in the attack.

MANYISI, Agnes , an ANC member, was shot dead by
a named member of the SAP in Sabie, Tvl, on 16
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November 1990 during an ANC-organised consumer
boycott and march.

MANYOBE, Dor een, had her home destroyed and
was severely beaten by IFP-supporting hostel-dwellers
in Swanieville, Krugersdorp, Tvl, on 12 May 1991.
About 115 shacks were set alight, 27 people were
killed and 25 vehicles were burnt in retaliation for the
expulsion of IFP supporters from the informal
settlement. Twelve people were charged with crimes
ranging from murder to arson but were acquitted due
to lack of evidence.

MANYOKOLE, Rantsoli Joseph (16), was severely
beaten with sjamboks by members of the Transkei
Police who accused him of burning down a shop in
Matatiele, Natal, in February 1990.

MANYONI, Agnes Zanele (91), an ANC supporter,
fled her home after she was intimidated by IFP
supporters in Mkhambathini, KwaZulu, near
Pietermaritzburg, in November 1991. Her house was
then burnt down.

MANYONI, Fanakhe (53), an IFP supporter, was
hacked and stabbed to death by other IFP supporters
at an IFP rally at Wembezi, KwaZulu, near Estcourt,
Natal, on 29 December 1991. The perpetrators
allegedly suspected him of transporting amagabane in
the area.

MANYONI, Maria Nomggibelo (46), was injured
when a hand grenade exploded in a bus transporting
workers in Heidelberg, Tvl, on 28 September 1992.
One person died and 13 were injured in the attack. A
labour dispute between striking COSATU-aligned
FAWU and non-striking IFP-aligned UWUSA workers
caused violent conflict from July to December 1992.
MANYONI, Nomathemba Mavis (35), had her house
burnt down by UDF supporters in Woodyglen,
Mpumalanga, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 18 March
1988 in intensifying political conflict in the area.
MANYONI, Ntombikayise Victoria  (36), an Inkatha
supporter, had her home in Mpumalanga, KwaZulu, near
Durban, destroyed in March 1987 in intensifying conflict
between Inkatha and UDF supporters in the area.
MANYONI, Nurse Maria (41), an ANC supporter, had
her house at Lindelani, near KwaMashu, Durban, burnt
down by named IFP supporters in intensifying political
conflict in the area in 1987.

MANYONI, Sibongile (50), a UDF supporter, was
severely beaten by Inkatha supporters in KwaMashu,
Durban, during an Inkatha march on 1 January 1986.
The perpetrators were allegedly angered by the fact
that Ms Manyoni was watching the marchers and not
taking part.

MANYONT A, Nompumelelo Freda (36), an ANC
supporter, was arrested in March 1976 in KwaZakele,
Port Elizabeth, and charged with arson. She was
convicted and sentenced to 18 months’ imprisonment.
MANZANA, Mandla James (14), was shot on the
ankle and shoulder by a named member of the SAP
while walking with a KHUTSONG YOuTH CONGRESS
member wanted by the police in Khutsong,
Carletonville, Tvl, on 8 June 1988.

PAGE 316



MANZANA, Mncedi , was assaulted and sustained
injuries when he was attacked by unidentified persons
at Cala, Transkei, on 18 August 1960, during resistance
to the installation of KD Matanzima as Chief of the
Thembus. A relative died in the attack.

MANZANA, Mongezi , a Transkei Defence Force
(TDF) soldier, was injured during an ATTEMPTED COUP IN
UMTATA, TRANSKEI, on 22 November 1990. Seven TDF
soldiers were killed and some 33 wounded. Four of
the coup conspirators were granted amnesty. Six
Vlakplaas operatives were granted amnesty for
providing arms for the attempted coup. An SADF
Military Intelligence operative, who applied for
amnesty for his role in supporting the coup, later
withdrew his application (AC/2000/036; AC/2001/095
and AC/2001/199).

MANZANA, W illiam , an ANC supporter, was stabbed
to death by named perpetrators outside his house in
Cala, Transkei, on 18 August 1960, allegedly because
he opposed the installation of KD Matanzima as Chief
of the Thembus.

MANZI, Catherine , had her house burnt down in
Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, in
March 1994 in intense political conflict in the area. See
SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANZ|, Esther (56), an ANC supporter, had her home
burnt down by IFP supporters in Sonkombo,
Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 16 March 1994.
See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANZI, Gladys Hope (46), an ANC supporter, lost her
hearing and some of her teeth when was severely
beaten by members of the Security Branch while in
solitary confinement in Durban in 1977. She was
served with two five-year banning orders.

MANZI, Martin (15), was severely assaulted by alleged
members of the SAP in Alexandra, Johannesburg, in
January 1986.

MANZI, Mfuneni Richard (35), an ANC supporter, had
his house burnt down by IFP supporters in Sonkombo,
Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, in March 1994. See
SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANZI, Mkoti Nomusa (44), an ANC member, had
her house burnt down by IFP supporters in Sonkombo,
Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 16 March 1994.
See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANZI, Sabekile Maureen (25), had her home burnt
down by IFP supporters in Sonkombo, Ndwedwe,
KwaZulu, near Durban, on 20 March 1994. See
SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANZI, Thembeni Ncamisile (24), had her home burnt
down by IFP supporters in Sonkombo, Ndwedwe,
KwaZulu, near Durban, on 20 March 1994. See
SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANZI, Thembimkosi Zephania  (47), had his house
burnt down by IFP supporters in Sonkombo, Ndwedwe,
KwaZulu, near Durban, on 16 March 1994. See
SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANZI, Tholakele Doris (31), an ANC supporter, was
shot dead on 16 March 1994 in an attack by IFP
supporters, allegedly assisted by members of the
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KwaZuLu Potick, on residents of the isolated ANC
stronghold in Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near
Durban. See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MANZI, Vusumuzi (36), an ANC supporter, had his
home burnt down during intensifying conflict between
UDF and Inkatha supporters in Folweni, KwaZulu, near
Umlazi, Durban, in 1989.

MANZI, Wellington Zithembele (29), was arrested on
7 November 1990 and detained without trial for three
days at Mdantsane, Ciskei, allegedly because of his
political activities. While in detention, he was severely
beaten by members of the CDF and Ciskei Police.
MANZINI, David Mevane , was assaulted and killed in
his yard by an unidentified perpetrator at Boiphatong,
Vanderbijlpark, Tvl, on 17 June 1991 during conflict
between ANC and IFP supporters.

MANZINI, Edward , was killed in KwaDlangezwa,
KwaZulu, near Empangeni, Natal, on 27 February 1993
in continuing conflict between ANC and IFP supporters
in the area.

MANZINI, Mthombi Flora (38), was beaten and tear-
gassed at Shongwe Mission, Nelspruit, Tvl, in May
1986 by members of the SADF. Ms Manzini had
attended a meeting called by the ANCYL.

MANZINI, Solly Stephen (18), an ANCYL member,
was tortured in detention by named perpetrators in
Motetema, Lebowa, on 12 March 1986.

MANZIY A, Mthuthuzeli (36), was stabbed to death
by AMAAFRIKA supporters during conflict between
AmaAfrika and UDF supporters in Uitenhage, Cape, on
28 December 1989.

MAOBA, Elijah (48), an ANC member, was severely
assaulted by ANC-aligned self-defence unit (SDU)
members in Swanieville, near Krugersdorp, Tvl, on 26
September 1993 because he opposed SDU activity. His
shack was looted and sold. Mr Maoba laid a charge
against the perpetrators but they were found not guilty.
MAOKAWE, Mariah Mamoeng , was severely beaten
by Bophuthatswana Police during a meeting at Dryharts
Bathlapin tribal office in Taung, Bophuthatswana, on 6
December 1990. Dryharts villagers had summoned
chief Jerry Mahura to hear their grievances when police
dispersed the crowd with teargas and sjamboks.
MAOKENG, Abram (22), was shot and injured when
members of the Bophuthatswana police fired on a
crowd at City Rocks Stadium, Winterveld,
Bophuthatswana, on 26 March 1986 during a protest
against police brutality. See CiTy ROCKS SHOOTING.
MAPALALA, Sifiso (17), an ANC supporter, was shot
dead at his home at Esigisini, KwaZulu, near
Empangeni, Natal, on 10 August 1992 in continuing
conflict between IFP and ANC supporters in the area.
His cousin was also killed in the attack.

MAPAPU, Siphiwo Michael (26), a SAYCO member,
was severely tortured by named members of the SAP
on 13 May 1986 in Port Alfred, Cape. Police alleged he
was involved in organising stayaways and consumer
boycotts in the area.

MAPASA, Sonabiso Elias (52), a member of the SAP,
was shot and injured by a named UDF supporter
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during a protest near the Lindokuhle Railway Station,
Umlazi, Durban, on 28 November 1988.

MAPAYA, Moleboge Phineas (29), was severely
assaulted by members of the SAP in Seleka village,
Ellisras, Tvl, during October 1990 because he attended
an ANC meeting declared illegal. Police dispersed the
crowd violently and attacked Mr Mapaya on his way
home.

MAPEKULA, Nyameko , was one of six persons
abducted and interrogated by ANC self-defence unit
(SDU) members near Port St Johns, Transkei, on 20
April 1994, shortly before the ApriL 1994 ELECTIONS. Mr
Mapekula and three others were then shot dead. The
SDU members believed that they were APLA
members who were on their way to disrupt an ANC
mass rally. Three SDU members were granted
amnesty (AC/2000/045).

MAPELA, Mnedisi Holford (31), an ANC supporter,
was beaten and tortured by named members of the
Security Branch on 13 May 1964 at Fleet Street police
station, East London.

MAPELA, Mzukisi Petros (25), an ANC supporter,
was beaten by named members of the Security
Branch in Uitenhage, Cape, on 6 October 1977.
MAPELA, Zimasile Michael (16), a COSAS member,
was shot dead by members of the SAP during a
SCHOOL BOYCOTT in Port Elizabeth, on 3 August 1985.
MAPELO, Maphefo Maria (16), a COSAS member, was
subjected to electric shock torture by named members
of the SAP in detention in Khutsong, Carletonville, Tvl,
in May 1990 because of her involvement in enforcing
a consumer boycott.

MAPETU, Mzoli David (23), a UDF supporter, was
severely beaten by members of the Security Branch
on 18 August 1985 in Port Elizabeth, allegedly because
he broke a curfew.

MAPHAHA, (first name not given), was beaten to
death by community residents in the Tshino village of
Venda on 2 February 1990, in attacks on people
accused of practising witchcraft to hinder the work of
political activists in the area. Mr Maphaha was one of
two people killed that day. Two perpetrators were
granted amnesty (AC/2000/094).

MAPHALALA, Alphina Sbuko (59), an ANC supporter,
had her house and shop destroyed in an arson attack
by a named IFP supporter at Mvutshini, near Port
Shepstone, Natal, in February 1992.

MAPHALALA, Elphas Sipho (26), was injured when a
limpet mine, planted by MK operatives, exploded
during lunchtime at the Wimpy restaurant in Benoni,
Tvl, on 30 July 1988. One woman was killed and at
least 66 people were injured. Four MK operatives
were granted amnesty for the planning and execution
of the attack (AC/1999/0294).

MAPHALALA, Mantwa V irginia Virsy (15), a COSAS
member, was shot and severely injured by members
of the SAP in Bloemfontein, in February 1990, while
participating in a scHooL BoycoTT. She was also kicked
in the face and arrested for being at the scene of a
boycott.
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MAPHALALA, Sydney , was shot dead by police in
Mapetla, Soweto, Johannesburg, on 27 August 1976
in the aftermath of the SoweTo UPRISING.

MAPHALALA, Thokozile Lesiah (35), was forced to
leave her home in Bergville, Natal, in February 1994
after persistent intimidation by IFP supporters because
her daughter had witnessed an IFP attack in the area.
MAPHALANE, Lennox Thabang (16), was one of two
youths shot dead in a ‘Trojan Horse’ type shooting by
named members of the SAP and Railway Police concealed
on a railway truck on 25 March 1986 in Nyanga, Cape
Town. See TROJAN HORSE INCIDENT, CAPE TOWN.
MAPHANGA, Alfred Qanda , was shot and wounded
when ANC security guards opened fire from the ANC
headquarters at Shell House, Johannesburg, on a crowd
of IFP marchers, on 28 March 1994. At least nine
marchers were killed and around 100 injured. Ten ANC
security guards were granted amnesty (AC/2000/142).
MAPHANGA, Bhekizwe Russell (21), was severely
beaten and kicked by members of the Security Branch
in Durban during 1963, after being arrested while
attempting to cross the border. He was subsequently
sentenced to seven years’ imprisonment on politically-
related charges.

MAPHANGA, Dudu , and her mother were killed by
ANC supporters and residents of Ga Mantlhanyane
village, Nebo, Lebowa, on 11 April 1994. The victims
were abducted and taken to a mountainous area where
petrol was poured over them and they were set alight.
Ms Maphanga’s own brother was forced to set them
alight. They were accused of using witchcraft to cause
the deaths of six youths. Two ANC supporters were
granted amnesty (AC/2000/077).

MAPHANGA, James , was abducted from home and
burnt to death by named ANC supporters in Kwa-
Lugetlhane, KwaNdebele, during September 1986. Mr
Maphanga worked for the KwaNdebele chief and was
considere a ‘sell-out’ during violent conflict over
INCORPORATION into KwaNdebele.

MAPHANGA, Leonard Geor ge, was shot dead and his
body was burnt by IFP-aligned ToASTER GANG members
in Tembisa, Tvl, on 31 July 1992 during violent conflict
between ANC and IFP supporters in the area.
MAPHANGA, Mabhalane , was shot and wounded
when ANC security guards opened fire from the ANC
headquarters at Shell House, Johannesburg, on a
crowd of IFP marchers, on 28 March 1994. At least nine
marchers were killed and around 100 injured. Ten ANC
security guards were granted amnesty (AC/2000/142).
MAPHANGA, Malope , and her daughter were killed
by ANC supporters and residents of Ga Mantlhanyane
village, Nebo, Lebowa, on 11 April 1994. The victims
were abducted and taken to a mountainous area
where petrol was poured over them and they were
set alight. Ms Maphanga’s own son was forced to set
them alight. They were accused of using witchcraft to
cause the deaths of six youths. Two ANC supporters
were granted amnesty (AC/2000/077).

MAPHANGA, Mondli (26), an ANC supporter, was
shot dead, and his body set alight, along with those of
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two friends, in Edendale, KwaZulu, near Pietermaritz-
burg, on 27 May 1990. It is alleged that the victims,
shortly before they were killed, had discovered a
minibus full of charred bodies at a garage frequented
by ANC supporters.

MAPHANGA, Ngazi Albert  (56), an ANC supporter, had
his house destroyed in an arson attack at Richmond
Farm, near KwaMashu, Durban, on 11 February 1991.
See RICHMOND FARM ARSON ATTACKS.

MAPHANGA, Okie , was shot and wounded when
ANC security guards opened fire from the ANC
headquarters at Shell House, Johannesburg, on a
crowd of IFP marchers, on 28 March 1994. At least
nine marchers were killed and around 100 injured. Ten
ANC security guards were granted amnesty
(AC/2000/142).

MAPHANGA, Sibusiso (18), an ANC supporter, was
shot dead by members of the SAP while attending a
night vigil in KwaMashu, Durban on 16 February 1991.
MAPHANGA, Silwayiphi Alfred  (27), was shot and
wounded when ANC security guards opened fire from
the ANC headquarters at Shell House, Johannesburg,
on a crowd of IFP marchers, on 28 March 1994. At
least nine marchers were killed and around 100 injured.
Ten ANC security guards were granted amnesty
(AC/2000/142).

MAPHANGA, Sukumani Vitans  (20), an ANC
supporter, had his home burnt down by a named IFP
supporter in Ncelebantwana, near Bulwer, Natal, on 10
August 1991. Mr Maphanga had allegedly refused to
join the IFP.

MAPHANGA, Themba Albert (38), was shot dead by
a named Inkatha leader in Imbali, Pietermaritzburg, on
12 November 1989 in intensifying political conflict in
the area. He was allegedly targeted because his family
was sympathetic to the ANC.

MAPHANGA, T iny, was shot dead by IFP supporters
at a night vigil in Alexandra, Johannesburg, on 26
March 1991.

MAPHANGA-MKHW ANAZI, Kate Martha (32), was
shot by named perpetrators in Alexandra, Johannesburg,
on 26 March 1991.

MAPHAPHU, Nongezile Nomathemba  (33), lost her
shack in an arson attack in Khayelitsha, Cape Town, in
January 1992, after it caught fire from the burning
house of a neighbour who was a SANCO member.
MAPHIKE, Daniel Dibete , was shot dead by members
of the SAP in Sharpeville, Tvl, during the SHARPEVILLE
MASSACRE on 21 March 1960.

MAPHIKE, Stephen Puleramaileng , the Chancellor of
Vista University, had his garage and motor vehicles
damaged in a hand grenade attack at his home in
Rockville, Soweto, Johannesburg, on 6 June 1986, by
members of the Soweto Security Branch purporting to
be MK operatives. The operation was intended to give
an informer credibility. Four Soweto Security Branch
operatives were granted amnesty (AC/2001/036).
MAPHINI, Zakhele Amos (40), had his home burnt
down by IFP supporters during political conflict
between the ‘ReED’ AND ‘GREEN’ FACTIONS in Bhambayi,
near KwaMashu, Durban, in 1993.
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MAPHIPA, Mzukisi , was shot dead in Tokoza, Tvl, on
19 November 1993, allegedly by named members of
the ISU who killed three people and wounded one,
during political conflict in the area.

MAPHISA, Daemane David (28), an ANC supporter,
was shot dead by members of the AWB in
Bethlehem, OFS, on 6 April 1994, in the run-up to the
country’s first democratic elections. See ApriL 1994
ELECTIONS and RIGHT-WING ATTACKS.
MAPHOLOGELA, Sene Johannes (37), an ANC
supporter, was tortured in detention by members of
the SAP in Naboomspruit, Tvl, in 1993.
MAPHOLOGELA, Solomon Madimetja Chompo  (23),
an ANCYL member, was shot and injured by members
of the SAP in Naboomspruit, Tvl, on 14 April 1993.
MAPHOSA, Beauty Sesana (41), was shot and injured
by members of the SAP in Wesselton, Ermelo, Tvl, on
13 December 1989 when police opened fire on a crowd
marching torwards the court during a rent boycott.
MAPHOSA, Mathews (32), was shot and injured by
members of the SAP at Mapetla, Soweto, Johannes-
burg, on 17 June 1976, the day after the Soweto
UPRISING began.

MAPHOSA, Simon Petrus (45), was arrested by
members of the SAP at Siyabuswa, KwaNdebele, in
1987 and kept in solitary confinement at Middelburg,
Tvl, because he refused to join the pro-independence
IMBOKODO vigilante group.

MAPHOSA, Vincent , an ANC supporter, was
abducted and assaulted by members of the ‘Zim-Zim’
faction at Khutsong, Carletonville, Tvl, on 20
November 1990 during violent conflict between the
‘Zim-Zim’ and ‘Gadaffi’ faction when the local ANC
branch in the area split into two rival groups. Mr
Maphosa was a ‘Gadaffi’ supporter. See also KHUTSONG
YouTH CONGRESS.

MAPHUDA, Alex , was injured when members of
MK’s Special Operations Unit detonated an explosive
in a car outside the SADF Witwatersrand Command
headquarters in Johannesburg on 30 July 1987. At
least 68 people were injured. Three MK operatives and
one UDF supporter linked to MK were granted
amnesty for their roles in this attack (AC/2001/0003
and AC/2000/248).

MAPHUMANE, Hali Petr us, was killed when a hand
grenade detonated by a named MK operative
exploded in Sebokeng, Tvl, on 27 November 1992. MK
and APLA members returning from exile were training
community members to defend themselves against
attacks by the IFP and security forces. The perpetrator
threw the hand grenade after getting involved in an
argument at a stokvel. Six people died and four were
injured in the explosion.

MAPHUMULO, Africa Mthokozisi (28), an ANC
supporter, was stabbed to death by IFP supporters in
Qinabout, Port Shepstone, Natal, on 28 July 1991. His
family was continually harassed by IFP youths.
MAPHUMULO, Agrippa (33), an ANC supporter, was
shot dead and his body was mutilated by IFP
supporters in KwaMakhutha, Amanzimtoti, near
Durban, on 24 September 1993.
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MAPHUMULO, Bahambephi (65), lost her house in
Mandini, Natal, in an arson attack on 28 December
1991 during political violence between IFP and ANC
supporters in the area.

MAPHUMULO, Bhekithemba Eugene (28), was shot
dead by IFP supporters in Magabheni, Umgababa,
KwaZulu, near Durban, on 30 July 1990, allegedly
because his father, in whose house the attack took
place, was an ANC supporter. Mr Maphumulo’s wife
was also shot dead and his son, aged 4, was shot and
injured in the attack.

MAPHUMULO, Bongani (55), had his house in
Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, burnt
down by ANCYL members on 20 March 1994. See
SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MAPHUMULDO, Bongiwe (26), an ANC supporter, was
abducted from her home in Ntuzuma, near Durban, on
1 November 1987, in intensifying conflict between
ANC/UDF and Inkatha supporters. Her throat was slit,
and her body was found the following day next to the
Igobhogobho river, between Ntuzuma and Lindelani.
MAPHUMULO, Doto John (68), an ANC supporter,
had his house burnt down by IFP supporters in
Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 16
March 1994. See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.
MAPHUMULO, Edward Bonginkosi  (37), an ANC
supporter, had his house petrol-bombed by IFP
supporters in Bhekulwandle, Amanzimtoti, near
Durban, on 29 October 1992. Shots were fired in the
attack, injuring Mr Maphumulo’s mother. His sister, an
invalid, died from smoke inhalation.

MAPHUMULO, Eric Mhlabunzima (31), had his
home burnt down by IFP supporters at the Geneva
settlement, near Bhambayi, near KwaMashu, Durban,
in March 1993 in intense political conflict in the area.
At least 18 people were killed in palitical violence in
Bhambayi in March 1993. Seventy-five homes were
burnt down.

MAPHUMULO, Fanlo William (51), was shot dead by
an IFP supporter in Magabheni, Umgababa, KwaZulu,
near Durban, on 31 December 1990 in intense political
conflict in the area.

MAPHUMULO, Fanyana Amos (69), an ANC
supporter, had his house burnt down by IFP supporters
in Magongqo, Table Mountain, near Pietermaritzburg,
in 1991, allegedly because he was associated with
CONTRALESA Chief Mhlabunzima Maphumulo. Chief
Maphumulo had died in a targeted killing on 25
February 1991.

MAPHUMULDO, Flora (65), had her home in Bhambayi,
near KwaMashu, Durban, burnt down on 3 July 1993
in intense political conflict between the ‘Rep’ AND
‘GREEN’ FACTIONS.

MAPHUMULO, Gcina Geof frey (41), an ANC
supporter, was shot and stabbed to death in Bhoboyi,
Port Shepstone, Natal, on 2 July 1991 by unidentified
persons who had urged him to accompany them to an
IFP self-defence training camp.

MAPHUMULO, Gladness Thoko (22), was repeatedly
harassed by members of the Special Branch from
1964 onwards, and was refused permission to own or
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rent a house in Durban. Her husband, an MK operative,
Mr Msizeni Maphumulo, had been imprisoned on
Robben Island.

MAPHUMULDO, Isabel , was shot dead by IFP
supporters in Amanzimtoti, near Durban, during March
1993. Her daughter and granddaughter were killed in
the same attack, which occurred when they returned
to check on the home they had fled for safety.
MAPHUMULO, Joy Maryjane (29), an ANC
supporter, was shot and injured by IFP supporters on
27 July 1992 in Folweni, KwaZulu, near Umlazi,
Durban. A day earlier, eight people had been killed by
armed IFP supporters in the FOLWENI MASSACRE.
MAPHUMULO, Joyce Sibongile (36), an ANC
supporter, had her house at Umlazi, Durban, burnt
down by Inkatha supporters, allegedly assisted by
members of the KwaZuLu PoLickg, in August 1985.
MAPHUMULO, Justice Nkosingiphile  (25), an ANC
supporter, was burnt to death by IFP supporters at
Emachobeni, Richmond, Natal, on 5 July 1991. He had
allegedly failed to respond to an IFP youth recruitment
campaign.

MAPHUMULO, Kenneth Nkosinathi , an ANC
supporter, was shot dead by IFP supporters in
Folweni, KwaZulu, near Umlazi, Durban on 5 August
1992. His cousin, also an ANC supporter, was also
killed in the attack. A COSATU stayaway had been
organised for that day, and IFP supporters had
allegedly attacked those who had not gone to work.
MAPHUMULO, Khathi Nomusa (37), an IFP
supporter, lost her house in an arson attack at
Magabheni, Umgababa, KwaZulu, near Durban, in
January 1993 in continuing conflict between ANC and
IFP supporters in the area.

MAPHUMULO, Linda Michael (30), an ANC
supporter, was shot dead by an Inkatha supporter in
Umlazi, Durban, on 21 March 1990. More than nine
people died in political conflict in the area on this day,
following the killing of two people by the police.
MAPHUMULDO, Liso , was injured when a limpet mine
exploded on a municipal bus in Gardiner Street,
Durban, on 30 November 1993. The explosive was
being conveyed by APLA operatives to an intended
target. When it accidentally exploded, 12 people were
killed, including one of the operatives. See APLA
ATTACKS. One APLA member and two PASO members
were granted amnesty (AC/1998/0076).
MAPHUMULO, Lulu Dinah (50), had her house at
Lindelani, near KwaMashu, Durban, vandalised by
Inkatha supporters on 7 December 1989. At the time,
Lindelani residents were being forced to make
monthly contributions to Inkatha and pay community
levies. Those who did not pay were either forced to
leave the area or had their houses set alight.
MAPHUMULO, Mandla Erik (28), lost his house in an
arson attack in the Mkhukhuze area, KwaZulu, near
Eshowe, Natal, in 1993 in continuing conflict between
IFP and ANC supporters in the area.

MAPHUMULO, Mandla Ophius (44), was returning
home from a funeral when he was shot dead in
Magabheni, Umgababa, KwaZulu, near Durban, on
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2 September 1990 in intense conflict between ANC
and IFP supporters in the area.

MAPHUMULO, Mandlenkosi (47), an ANC supporter,
had his house burnt down by IFP supporters in
Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on

16 March 1994. See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.
MAPHUMULO, Maghikiza Fanisile (46), was shot
and injured when IFP supporters attacked a bus in
Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 14
February 1994 in political conflict during the run-up to
the APRIL 1994 ELECTIONS.

MAPHUMULO, Mhlabunzima Joseph (42), was shot
dead at his home in central Pietermaritzburg on

25 February 1991. One of the alleged perpetrators is
named. Chief Maphumulo of Magonggo was the
president of CONTRALESA, an organisation of
traditional leaders, which was aligned with the UDF
and ANC. He was also instrumental in the local peace
process. He had survived several assassination
attempts for his political views.

MAPHUMULO, Mncedisi , was shot dead by IFP
supporters at her family home in Amanzimtoti, near
Durban in March 1993. Her mother and grandmother
died in the same attack, which occurred when the family
returned to check on the home they had fled for safety.
MAPHUMULO, Mr (first name not given), a prominent
Inkatha member, was shot dead at his shop in
Clermont, near Durban, in 1988 by a group of UDF
supporters. Two UDF supporters and members of the
Clermont Youth Congress were granted amnesty
(AC/2001/101).

MAPHUMULO, Msawenkosi , an IFP supporter, was
burnt to death in August 1993 when ANC supporters
attacked and set fire to his mother’s home in Nsuze,
Tongaat, Natal. His brother, also an IFP supporter, was
also burnt to death in the attack.

MAPHUMULO, Msizeni Shadrack (48), a senior member
of MK’s Natal military machinery in Swaziland, was
shot by SADF Special Forces operatives while he was
resisting abduction from his home in Manzini, Swaziland,
on 12 December 1986. Mr Maphumulo died en route
to South Africa. A 13-year-old Swazi national was killed
and four other foreign nationals (two Swiss, one Swazi
and one South African) were abducted from their homes
in Mbabane, Swaziland, in the same operation. Mr
Maphumulo, from KwaMashu, Durban, had previously
been imprisoned on Robben Island for ten years.
MAPHUMULO, Mthandeni , an SAP member, was
arrested and tortured by fellow members of the SAP
in Springs, Tvl, on 12 August 1986 after he dug the
body of an MK operative out of a government grave so
it could be sent to Sabie for a decent family burial. He
was later discharged from the police.

MAPHUMULO, Mzwamandla , an IFP supporter, was
burnt to death in August 1993 when ANC supporters
attacked and set fire to his mother’s home in Nsuze,
Tongaat, Natal. His brother, an IFP supporter, was also
burnt to death in the attack.

MAPHUMULO, Nakoti (51), an ANC supporter, had
her homestead destroyed in an arson attack by
unidentified persons, at Magabheni, Umgababa,
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KwaZulu, near Durban, Natal, in 1991 in ongoing
conflict between IFP and ANC supporters in the area.
Both her sons were injured in the attack.
MAPHUMULO, Nhlanhla Gerald (34), an ANC
supporter, was stabbed and injured by a named IFP
supporter at Magonggo, Table Mountain, near
Pietermaritzburg, in 1991. At the time of the attack,
Mr Maphumulo was allegedly with a person who was
being targeted by local youths and IFP chiefs.
MAPHUMULO, Nokuphiwa (67), lost her house in
Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, in an
arson attack by IFP supporters on 16 March 1994. See
SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MAPHUMULO, Nonkantolo Ganephi  (73), had her
house burnt down by ANC supporters at Nsuze, Tongaat,
Natal, in August 1993. Both her sons, who were IFP
supporters, were burnt to death in the attack.
MAPHUMULO, Nosibhedela (62), had her house
burnt down by IFP supporters in Magongqo, Table
Mountain, near Pietermaritzburg, in 1991. Since 1984,
Ms Maphumulo and her family had experienced
sustained periods of victimization and harassment by
Inkatha supporters, allegedly because her son, Chief
Mbhlabunzima Maphumulo, refused to align himself
with Inkatha.

MAPHUMULO, Ntombi Alzina , a UDF supporter, had
her house looted and set alight on 6 April 1990 when
a group of Inkatha supporters attacked UDF
supporters and residents at Mpumalanga, KwaZulu,
near Durban, in spite of a heavy police and military
presence. Fourteen people were killed and at least
120 homes burnt down. One former IFP member was
granted amnesty (AC/1999/0332).

MAPHUMULO, Penelope Nombuso (28), an ANC
supporter, was shot dead by IFP supporters at
Magabheni, Umgababa, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 30
July 1990, allegedly because her father-in-law, in whose
house the attack took place, was an ANC supporter.
Ms Maphumulo’s husband was also shot dead, and
her son, aged 4, was shot and injured in the attack.
MAPHUMULO, Pikinini Ephraim  (57), an ANC supporter,
was arrested in 1985 while crossing the border to
Swaziland. In custody in Durban, he was severely
assaulted by members of the SAP. Mr Maphumulo was
charged and convicted for leaving the country illegally.
He was released from Robben Island early on account
of injuries sustained while he was held in custody.
MAPHUMULO, Primrose Khwezi (37), an ANC
supporter and an invalid, died of suffocation when her
brother’s house was petrol-bombed by IFP supporters
in KwaMakhutha, Amanzimtoti, near Durban, on 29
October 1992.

MAPHUMULO, Prisca , was shot dead by IFP
supporters in Amanzimtoti, near Durban, in March
1993. Her daughter and mother were killed in the
same attack, which occurred when they returned to
check on the home they had fled for safety.
MAPHUMULO, S’mangile Mavis (24), lost her home
in Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, in an
arson attack by IFP supporters on 20 March 1994. See
SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.
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MAPHUMULO, Samukelo (4), was shot and injured
by IFP supporters at Magabheni, Umgababa, KwaZulu,
near Durban, on 30 July 1990, allegedly because his
grandfather, in whose house the attack took place,
was an ANC supporter. Samukelo’s parents were both
shot dead in the attack.

MAPHUMULO, Shadrack , an informer, was shot and
killed by Security Branch members and Vlakplaas
operatives on the 14 August 1986 at the Nerston/
Amsterdam Road, Nerston. Mr Maphumulo was
tasked by the perpetrators to infiltrate an MK unit and
transport them across the border. In an ambush, four
members of the unit were killed and one was
wounded. Mr Maphumulo was also killed. Three
perpetrators were refused amnesty and eight granted
amnesty for the incident (AC/2001/148).
MAPHUMULO, Sibongile Patricia  (37), had her
house burnt down by ANC supporters in Isigodi
Bekwandla, Amanzimtoti, near Durban, on 19 March
1990 in intensifying conflict in the area following the
UNBANNING Of political organisations in February 1990.
Ms Maphumulo lived in an Inkatha stronghold, which
was attacked that day by ANC supporters.
MAPHUMULDO, Sibusiso (13), an ANC supporter, was
killed on 18 February 1994, when four gunmen attacked
a house in the rural Mahahle village, near Creighton,
Ixopo, Natal, in which he and other ANC youths were
sleeping. Fifteen ANC youths were killed in the attack.
They had been seen putting up posters announcing a
voter education workshop in preparation for the ApriL
1994 eLECTIONS. Four prominent IFP leaders were
acquitted on charges relating to the massacre.
MAPHUMULO, Sihle Cyprian (14), an ANC supporter,
was shot dead at K Section, Umlazi, Durban, on 24
September 1993 in continuing conflict between IFP
and ANC supporters in the area.

MAPHUMULO, Sikhumbuzo Richard  (14), was shot
dead in an attack on his family home at Folweni,
KwaZulu, near Umlazi, Durban, on 25 March 1992,
during continuing conflict between IFP and ANC
supporters in the area.

MAPHUMULO, Simon Qhimilili  (36), an ANC
supporter, had his home burnt down by IFP supporters
in Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on
20 March 1994. See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.
MAPHUMULO, Simphiwe Hamilton (15), an ANC
supporter, was shot dead by IFP supporters and
members of the KwaZuLu PoLice at a shebeen in
Adams, Umlazi, Durban, on 16 October 1993.
MAPHUMULO, Thembinkosi (12), was shot dead by in
an attack by IFP supporters at Magabheni, Umgababa,
KwaZulu, near Durban, on 31 December 1990. His
father was also killed in the attack.

MAPHUMULO, Thomi Thomas (39), was shot dead
while returning home from work in Isipingo, Natal, on
9 April 1992, during conflict between IFP and ANC
supporters in the area. Mr Maphumulo had previously
fled Umbumbulu to escape the violence.
MAPHUMULO, Twayisa Godfr ey, had his house
destroyed in an arson attack at Inanda, near KwaMashu,

VOLUME 7 Victim findings: Summaries

Durban, on 27 November 1986, in intensifying conflict
between ANC/UDF and Inkatha supporters in the area.
The perpetrators were allegedly looking for his children,
who were ANC supporters.

MAPHUMULO, Venaneia (49), an ANC supporter, had
her house burnt down by members of the SAP in
Umbumbulu, KwaZulu, near Durban, in 1986. Members
of the family members were targeted for harassment
and attack because of their active support for the ANC.
MAPHUMULO, Vusi Wilson  (33), an ANC supporter, was
injured when his car overturned after it had been
stoned by IFP supporters at Magongqo, Table Mountain,
near Pietermaritzburg, in 1991.

MAPHUMULO, V usi, an ANC supporter, was shot dead
by Inkatha supporters in Mariannhill, Pinetown, Natal,
on 7 February 1990, in intense conflict following the
UNBANNING Of political organisations a few days earlier.
MAPHUMULDO, Zanele (21), was shot dead at
Tongaat, Natal, on 8 August 1992 in continuing conflict
between ANC and IFP supporters in the area.
MAPHUMULO, Zibuyile Joyce (24), an IFP supporter,
had her home burnt down by ANC supporters in
Umbumbulu, KwaZulu, near Durban, in March 1992.
MAPHUMULO, Zithulele Gilbert (45), an ANC
supporter, had his home burnt down by IFP supporters,
allegedly assisted by the police, at Port Shepstone,
Natal, on 21 September 1992. A peace initiative to end
political violence in the area was underway at the time.
MAPHUTHUMA, Namwele , had her home in
Bhambayi, near KwaMashu, Durban, burnt down in
1993 in intense political conflict between the ‘RED’ AND
‘GREEN’ FACTIONS.

MAPIPA, Desmond Daliwonga , was one of four
Eastern Cape Security Branch operatives killed in the
MOTHERWELL CAR BOMB explosion, Port Elizabeth, on 14
December 1989, in a joint operation by the Eastern Cape
Security Branch and Security Branch headquarters.
Two operatives from the Eastern Cape Security Branch
and seven from Security Branch headquarters, including
the Vlakplaas commander and his commanding officer,
were refused amnesty for the operation. Applicants
presented different versions as to why the four had
been killed (AC/1999/0345).

MAPIPA, Mvumelwano Nicholas , a PAC supporter,
was shot dead by named and other ANC supporters on
23 March 1994 in Port St Johns, Transkei, because he
and other PAC supporters were seen carrying firearms
while allegedly on their way to attack ANC members.
MAPISA, Buyisile R yan, was tortured while in
detention by members of the SA Railway Police in
1977 at Cambridge police station, East London. He
was detained and tortured again on 23 December
1988 in Mdantsane, Ciskei.

MAPOLISA, Msetshwa (39), had his home and
possessions burnt by IFP supporters in March 1993 in
Bhambayi, near KwaMashu, Durban, in intense political
conflict between the ‘ReD’ AND ‘GREEN’ FACTIONS. At
least 18 people died in political violence in Bhambayi
that month, and 75 homes were burnt down.
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MAPOMA, Phuti Lina (52), had her home at GaMatlala,
Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of Chief BK
Matlala on 2 February 1980, because she resisted
Lebowa’s proposed independence from South Africa.
MAPONGW ANA, Mhleli Michael (44), chairperson of
the Western Cape Civic Association and an ANC
supporter, was pulled from a vehicle and shot dead by
named and other members of the Western Cape Black
Taxi Association in Philippi, Cape Town, on 8 July 1991.
His driver was also shot dead. Mr Mapongwana had
played a mediating role in ongoing taxi conflicts, which
had acquired a political dimension. He had survived
two previous assassination attempts in 1990, one of
which had killed his wife. See TAXI VIOLENCE.
MAPONGW ANA, Nomsa (36), was shot dead during
a petrol bomb and gunfire attack on her home in
Khayelitsha, Cape Town, on 18 October 1990. The
perpetrators, believed to be linked to the Lingelethu
West Town Council, were aiming to kill her husband
who was chairperson of the Western Cape Civic
Association and a leader in the campaign to oppose
the town council.

MAPONYA, Andries Itumeleng (27), was placed in
solitary confinement for about nine months in
Johannesburg, in 1988. Police wanted to know where
his MK member brother was. Mr Maponya was
shown a newspaper cutting stating that his brother
had been killed by security forces.

MAPONYA, Japie Kereng (aka ‘Geeletjie’) , was
abducted from Krugersdorp, Tvl, during September
1985 by Vlakplaas operatives on the instructions of the
West Rand Security Branch. He was taken to Vlakplaas
and interrogated and assaulted in an effort to extract
information about the activities of his brother, MK
operative Odirile Maponya, aka ‘Mainstay’. Following
his refusal to co-operate, he was killed and buried on
the Swazi side of the border. Nine Security Branch
operatives, including the divisional commander of
West Rand and the commander of Vlakplaas, applied
for amnesty. Three applications were refused and six
granted (AC/2001/272 and AM/2001/279).

MAPONYA, Peter, was shot at by NUMSA members
during a strike at the Haggie Rand factory in Tembisa,
Johannesburg, on 22 February 1990. Amnesty was
granted one NUMSA member (AC/1999/0296).
MAPOTELE, Piet, suffered injuries when the armoured
vehicle in which he was travelling drove over and
detonated a landmine in Messina, Tvl, on 27 November
1985. The ANC LANDMINE CAMPAIGN Was aimed at
military patrols in the rural areas. Three MK operatives
were granted amnesty (AC/2001/093).

MAPOULA, Noko Albert (57), had his home at
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of
Chief BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because Mr
Mapoula resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence
from South Africa.

MAPOULO, Monyane Joseph (42), had his home at
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of
Chief BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because Mr
Mapoulo resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence
from South Africa.
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MAPOULO, Ramkoni Martina (53), had her home at
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of Chief
BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because she resisted
Lebowa’s proposed independence from South Africa.
MAPUA, Oupa Josiah (21), a UDF activist, was shot
dead by members of the SADF during intense public
unrest in DUNCAN ViLLAGE, East London, on 13 August
1985.

MAPUMULO, Bongokwakhe Hebron (67), an ANC
supporter, had his house burnt down by IFP supporters in
Bhekulwandle, Amanzimtoti, near Durban, during 1991.
MAPUMULO, Cushiwe , died after being shot dead by
unidentified perpetrators at Katlehong, Tvl, on 12
September 1992, allegedly because her father was
rumoured to be an IFP supporter. Her two sisters died
as a result of the same attack.

MAPUMULO, Danisiel Amy (43), an ANC supporter,
had her house burnt down by IFP supporters in
Sonkombo, Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on

16 March 1994. See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.
MAPUMULO, Dumalile , was shot dead by uniden-
tified perpetrators at Katlehong, Tvl, on 12 September
1992, allegedly because her father was believed to be
an IFP supporter. Her two sisters died as a result of
the same attack.

MAPUMULDO, Gilford Katshana (51), had his house
in Qinabout, Port Shepstone, Natal, petrol-bombed in
April 1991 in continuing conflict between IFP and ANC
supporters in the area. Mr Mapumulo and his family
were forced to flee the area.

MAPUMULO, Nomlomo , was severely injured after
being stabbed and shot in Katlehong, Tvl, allegedly by
ANC supporters, on 12 September 1992 because her
husband was suspected of being an IFP supporter. Ms
Mapumulo’s three daughters were also allegedly killed
in this incident and her son was reportedly confined to
a wheelchair as a result of his injuries. Ms Mapumulo
herself lost an eye.

MAPUMULO, Siwoti (54), an ANC supporter, had her
home burnt down by IFP supporters in Sonkombo,
Ndwedwe, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 16 March 1994.
See SONKOMBO ARSON ATTACKS.

MAPUMULO, Siyangoshova , was shot dead in
Umbumbulu, KwaZulu, near Durban, on 28 July 1987,
in intensifying conflict between UDF and Inkatha
supporters in the area.

MAPUMULO, Sizeni , was shot dead by unidentified
perpetrators at Katlehong, Tvl, on 12 September 1992,
allegedly because her father was rumoured to be an
IFP supporter. Her two sisters died as a result of the
same attack.

MAPUOA, Ronald Mosebetsi (aka ‘Sidwell Mbele’)
(27), an MK member, was shot dead in an attack by
SADF Special Forces and Vlakplaas operatives on
homes at Ditlharapeng village, Ramathlabama,
Botswana, 1000 metres from the South African
border, on 11 December 1988. A 15-year-old boy was
also killed, and three homes were destroyed. The
Vlakplaas commander and eight of his operatives were
granted amnesty (AC/2001/108).
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MAPUTE, Simphiwe Zakariah , was shot dead by a
member of an ANC self-defence unit (SDU) in
Vosloorus, Tvl, on 2 February 1993. The perpetrator
thought Mr Mapute was trying to attack him as he
walked along the road at night. One SDU member
was granted amnesty (AC/2001/140).

MAPUTLA, Phadishi Abram (49), was severely
beaten in Ga-Kibi Village, Lebowa, on 10 October 1986
at a community meeting called to discuss grievances
against the self-appointed Chief Lebogo. The chief
used police and SADF members to disperse the
meeting by sjambokking those in attendance.
MAPUTLA, Simon Selema (34), was severely
assaulted in Pietersburg, Tvl, on 10 April 1987 by two
named perpetrators claiming to be sent by a local
chief. They searched Mr Maputla’s home, took him to
the veld where they broke his jaw, tied his hands with
wire to the back of a van, and dragged him behind it.
MAQANDA, Themba Abeshai (47), was paralysed
after he was shot and severely injured by a named
town councillor in Vosloorus, Tvl, on 13 December 1992.
Mr Maganda was returning from a mass meeting
about a rent boycott when people taking part in a
protest march tried to set the councillor’s house alight.
MAQEKEZA, Dugard Zweledinga (27), an ANC
supporter with links to MK, was severely tortured in
detention in 1987 by members of the Transkei
Security Branch in Umtata, Transkei. One member of
the Transkei Security Branch was granted amnesty
(AC/2000/076).

MAQEKEZA, Jama Hamilton (24), was shot and
injured by members of the SAP in Guguletu, Cape
Town, on 11 August 1976, after the SOWETO UPRISING
erupted in Cape Town. Mr Magekeza was returning
from his job as a chef when he was shot. Over 20
people were killed that day during extensive unrest.
MAQEKEZA, Mazizi Attwell Ngubekhaya (aka

‘Mpilo’) (22), an MK operative from Gatyane,
Willowvale, Transkei, was shot dead in his bed in
Queen Elizabeth hospital, Lesotho, on 15 March 1988.
Mr Magekeza had been hospitalised in February 1988
after surviving a roadside ambush by armed men
wearing Lesotho security force uniforms. A fellow MK
operative was killed in the ambush, but a third MK
operative, Mr Mbulelo Ngono, escaped. He, however,
was abducted four days later by members of the
Ladybrand Security Branch and has not been seen since.
MAQENUKANA, Shakespear , a resident of
Crossroads, Cape Town, was severely beaten by local
squatter leaders in Crossroads in 1985. He was
abducted in 1986 and severely beaten, tortured and hit
with a panga on the head while being held for a week
at a local informal ‘jail’ run by WiTDoEkEe vigilantes in
Crossroads, with the approval of the security forces.
The second assault left him mentally disabled.
MAQETHUKA, Thamsanga (16), was shot dead by
named members of the SAP in Barkly East, Cape, on
10 February 1990 during celebrations of the release of
Nelson Mandela.

MAQETHUKA, Thembi Joyce (27), an ANC supporter,
had her house destroyed by IFP supporters in Chimora,
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Umlazi, Durban, on 16 January 1992. See CHIMORA
SETTLEMENT ATTACKS.

MAQETUKA, Vuyo (30), a PEYCO member, was shot by
members of the SAP in Port Elizabeth, on 27 March 1985
while he was attending a funeral of an unrest victim.
MAQEWU, Manhanha , was hacked to death by named
perpetrators on 18 December 1960 in Zizityaneni,
Bizana, Transkei, during the PONDOLAND REVOLT.
MAQGAQGA, Enoch Buti , was shot dead while
taking part in a march protesting about sanitation
services in Siyathemba, near Balfour, Tvl.

MAQHABA, Freeman James (57), a UDF supporter,
lost his shops, vehicles and furniture when they were
burnt by members of the SAP on 1 October 1985 in
Kirkwood, Cape.

MAQHASHA, V eronica Phumla , (12), was shot and
injured in Oudtshoorn, Cape, on 17 June 1985, by
members of the SAP who were concealed in a
policeman’s home. Three children, known as the
BoNnGoLETHU THREE were shot dead and several others
injured when police opened fire on those entering or
near the house.

MAQHASHALALA, Mantuntu Jackson , an ANC
supporter, was shot in Flagstaff, Transkei, in June
1960, during the PONDOLAND REVOLT.

MAQHULA, Mvulo Peter (19), a COSAS member,
was shot dead by a named member of the SAP in
KwaZakele, Port Elizabeth, on 10 May 1985.
MAQOGI, Monwabisi (20), a UDF supporter and
youth activist from Worcester, Cape, was arrested at a
Botswana border post while trying to leave the country
with four others in June 1987. He was severely
tortured by members of the Bophuthatswana Police in
that area and then taken to the Cape where he was
again tortured by named members of the Security
Branch from Worcester. After being held under secTion
29 in solitary confinement for six months, Mr Magogi
was sentenced to six years’ imprisonment. He was
released as a political prisoner in December 1990.
MAQOKO, Ndolotswana (32), was shot and injured
by members of the SAP in Nyanga, Cape Town, on 28
August 1985, during the PoLLSMOOR MARCH to demand
the release of Nelson Mandela.

MAQOLO, Bongani Leanard , a member of the
Cradock Youth Association, was sentenced to eight
years’ imprisonment in January 1987 at Cradock,
Cape, on a charge of killing a policeman during the
political conflict of 1985.

MAQOLO, Mbuyiselo Maxin (35), was beaten and
tortured by members of the SAP during political unrest
in Port Elizabeth in 1986.

MAQOMA, Nomagabiso Greta (46), an ANC
supporter, had her house burnt down by IFP supporters
in Amaoti, Inanda, near Durban, on 15 March 1991.
MAQOMA, Nomalungelo , was detained during
OPERATION KATZEN and tortured during interrogation by
members of the Ciskei Elite Unit in Alice, Ciskei,
in1986. Two members of the Ciskei Police, and seven
members of the SADF, Border Security Branch and
Department of Prisons for Operation Katzen were
granted amnesty for the torture (AC/1997/0023;
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AC/1997/0024; AC/1997/0025; AC/1998/043,;
AC/1999/003; AC/1999/245; AC/2000/037;
AC/2000/192; AC/2001/159 and AC/2001/224).
MAQUBELA, Wonke Withiel (16), a SAYCO member,
was detained and severely assaulted by members of
the SAP in Stutterheim, Cape, during the 1985 scHooL
BOYCOTTS.

MAQUNGO, Andile (13), was burnt to death in
Khayelitsha, Cape Town, on 21 January 1993, in an
attack by members of a BaLacLAvA GROuP who shot at the
house and set it alight. Seven people, including several
members of the Jwambi family, were killed in the attack.
MAQUNGO, Babalwa , was burnt to death in
Khayelitsha, Cape Town, on 21 January 1993, in an
attack by members of a BALACLAVA GROUP Who shot at
the house and set it alight. Seven people, including
several members of the Jwambi family, were killed in
the attack.

MAQWANE, Andrew Mbuiselo , was shot dead by
members of the IFP-aligned KHETISI KHESWA GANG in
Sebokeng, Tvl, on 12 January 1991 during the night
vigil of an ANC activist killed by the gang. Gang
members fired shots and threw hand grenades at
mourners, killing a number of people and injuring
several others. See NANGALEMBE NIGHT VIGIL MASSACRE.
MAQWAZIMA, Vukile Simon (39), was shot and
injured by members of the SADF in Daveyton, Tvl, on
24 March 1991 while the IFP held a rally in a nearby
stadium. Mr Magwazima had gathered with a group of
residents in anticipation of an IFP attack.

MARA, Bafedile Jane (20), an ANC supporter, was
severely tortured by members of the SAP while in
detention in Kroonstad, OFS, in March 1990. Together
with others, she was detained while taking part in a
rent and electricity boycott against the Council of
Moakeng, and charged with public violence. She was
held in custody for six weeks. Charges were
withdrawn after four months.

MARABA, Daniel , an ANC supporter (21), was tortured
in detention on 3 December 1985 at Khutsong,
Carletonville, Tvl, by named members of the SAP
trying to elicit information about the newly formed
Khutsong Youth League.

MARABA, Thibeli , died of injuries after being beaten
with a sjambok by members of the SAP on 16 June
1976, the first day of the SOWETO UPRISING.

MARABE, Maria Lipolelo (35), had her house burnt
down during a tribal dispute in Maboloko, Bophutha-
tswana, in May 1977.

MARAI, Lipota , an ANC member, was shot dead on 9
December 1982 in an attack by SADF Special Forces
operatives on several ANC houses and a block of flats
on Maseru, Lesotho. Thirty South Africans and 12
citizens of Lesotho were killed in the midnight attack.
After Mr Lipota had gone into exile in 1977, his
mother and sister were detained.

MARAIS, Ezekiel Domongo Matshidiso  (20), an ANC
member, was detained by members of the Fountain
Security Branch in Bloemfontein on three separate
occasions between January 1978 and June 1980. He
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was tortured in detention, allegedly for leading a rent
boycott and for ‘furthering the aims of the ANC"’.
MARAIS, Philmarin Annelize , was one of 18 people
injured in a limpet mine explosion at a bus stop near
the Checkers shopping complex in Silverton, Tvl, on 4
July 1986. Four MK operatives were granted amnesty
for the attack (AC/1999/0257).

MARAKALALA, Dikeledi Johannes  (36), was beaten
in Brits, Tvl, in 1989 by a named perpetrator, allegedly
a VArRk SQuabp member.

MARAKALALA, Josephine Mokgadi  (23), was
tortured in detention by members of the SAP at
Tembisa police station and Sun City prison, Tvl, during
the state of emergency in July 1986. Ms Marakalala
was active in various community organisations.
MARAKALALA, Makgaba Jeanette (35), an ANC
supporter, was beaten by VAR SQuAD vigilantes at
Oukasie, near Brits, Tvl, on 30 October 1989.
MARAKE, Paki George (50), a DIKWANKWETLA
NATIONAL PARTY (DNP) supporter and member of
the QwaQwa parliament, had his house burnt down in
BOTSHABELO, near Bloemfontein, on 19 August 1987.
His home was again petrol-bombed in June 1990.
MARAMBA, Zukiswa (19), an ANCYL member, was
severely beaten and injured by members of the Ciskei
Police on 24 October 1985 in Zwelitsha, Ciskei, while
he was attending a funeral.

MARANANA, Mr (first name not given), was shot
dead by members of the SAP in East London in March
1986.

MARANXA, Pumla (38), a PAC supporter, was
severely injured in Boipatong, Vanderbijlpark, Tvl, on
20 June 1990 when the SAP opened fire at a group of
PAC supporters gathered where members of the SAP
had shot a boy. Ms Maranxa was there to check if it
was her son who had been shot when police opened
fire. Ten pellets are still lodged in her back.
MARAWU, Howard , a church minister and trade
unionist, lost his home in a petrol bomb attack in
Guguletu, Cape Town, on 17 October 1979. Reverend
Marawu had endured ongoing police harassment
because of his political activity and had received
telephonic death threats shortly before the attack.
MARAWU, Mziwabantu Jafta , was shot and injured
by members of the SAP in 1976, after which his
house was petrol-bombed, allegedly by the SAP, in
Guguletu, Cape Town, during 1979. Mr Marawu'’s
father was a prominent political activist who had
received death threats before the attack.

MARAYI, Florence Ntombizonke (24), a UDF
supporter, was shot and stabbed, and had her house
petrol-bombed, by Inkatha supporters at Inanda, near
KwaMashu, Durban, in October 1989.

MARCH, David , was abducted by members of the
SAP in Alexandra, Johannesburg, in November 1993
during violence in the township. He has not been seen
since and is presumed dead.

MARCH, Joseph , was shot dead in his own front yard
in Alexandra, Johannesburg, in June 1993 during
conflict between IFP and ANC supporters.
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MARCH, Philip , was shot dead by members of the
SADF and SAP inside school grounds in Alexandra,
Johannesburg, in June 1976 after the SOWETO UPRISING
had spilt over into neighbouring areas.

MARCUS, Lulamile Mandla (21), was shot by
members of the CDF in Bisho, Ciskei, on 7 September
1992 during an ANC protest march to demand free
political activity in Ciskei. Thirty people were killed and
200 people injured in the event which became known
as the BisHomassAcre. Two members of the former CDF
were refused amnesty for the shooting (AC/2000/122).
MARE, Linus (34), was killed when MK operatives
detonated a car bomb using a remote control device
outside the Ellis Park rugby stadium, Johannesburg, on
2 July 1988. Two spectators leaving the rugby match
were killed and 37 others sustained minor and major
injuries. Four operatives from MK’s Special Operations
Unit, including its commander, were granted amnesty
(AC/2001/161).

MAREBODI, Thomas Mmereki (15), a UDF supporter
and student leader, was shot dead by members of the
SAP in Kimberley, Cape, on 11 April 1985, when police
opened fire on student protesters. His funeral was
tear-gassed and disrupted by police.

MAREDI, Jacob Khomotso (24), an ANC supporter,
was shot dead in Tembisa, Tvl, on 1 May 1993 because
of his political activities.

MAREDI, Kgagudi Hesekia (58), an ANC supporter,
was arrested and banished from his home in
Sekhukhune, Tvl, in 1956, and placed under house arrest
at Grahamstown, Cape, until 1966. His arrest followed
Sekhukhuneland resistance to self-government.
MAREKANE, Ber nar d, was shot and killed by NUMSA
members in Katlehong, near Johannesburg, on 28
March 1990. Amnesty was granted to one NUMSA
member (AC/1999/0296).

MAREMA, Mofolo Aron (36), lost his property in an
arson attack during conflict over the chieftaincy in
Maboloko, Bophuthatswana, on 7 May 1977. Many
other residents lost their homes in the attack.
MAREMAMA, Kwena Alber (52), had his home burnt
down in GaMatlala, Lebowa, by supporters of Chief BK
Matlala on 2 February 1980, because Mr Maremama
resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence from South
Africa.

MAREMAME, Makwena Rosina , had her home burnt
down at GaMatlala, Lebowa, by supporters of Chief
BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because she resisted
Lebowa’s proposed independence from South Africa.
MAREMANE, Celia Kgabo (35), had her home burnt
down at GaMatlala, Lebowa, by supporters of Chief
BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because she resisted
Lebowa’s proposed independence from South Africa.
MAREMANE, Makoena (42), had her house in
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by Chief BK Matlala’s
supporters on 2 February 1980 because she resisted
falling under his jurisdiction.

MAREMANE, Makoena Joseph , had his home at
GaMatlala, Lebowa, burnt down by supporters of Chief
BK Matlala on 2 February 1980, because Mr Maremane
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resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence from South
Africa.

MARENENE, Patrick , a community COUNCILLOR, was
stabbed, stoned and burnt to death by a large group of
named and other UDF supporters in Oudtshoorn, Cape,
on 22 November 1985. Six people were convicted of
the killing, three of which were sentenced to death,
later commuted to prison terms.

MARETLOANE, Thabang (22), an ANC supporter, was
tortured by attempted suffocation while he was in
detention in West Bank prison, East London, in June
1986.

MARETLWA, Joseph Mozwethemba (41), a civic
activist, was arrested and subjected to electric shock
torture by members of the SAP at Uranjoville police
station, Jouberton, Klerksdorp, Tvl, during December
1991. Mr Maretlwa was leading a residents’ campaign
to dismiss the local council and cancel all arrears on
communal services.

MARETLWA, Kgutli , was severely beaten with a hosepipe
at the taxi rank in Bekkersdal, near Westonaria, Tvl, by
a named member of the SAP during May 1990. He
and two friends who were also attacked were then
taken to the police garage and beaten further.

MARI, Ndoyisile W illiam , an ANC supporter, was
arrested in Port Elizabeth in 1964, and sentenced to
seven years’ imprisonment on Robben Island, Cape
Town. After his release, he was placed under
restrictions in the King William’s Town area, Cape.
MARI, Vuyisile (4), was assaulted by members of the
SAP at KwaZakele, Port Elizabeth, in 1964, during a
government crackdown on the ANC. His father served
time on Robben Island for his involvement in ANC
activities.

MARIE, Bobby , was detained by members of the
Security Branch in 1976 and held without trial for five
months. Mr Marie was reportedly targeted because
his mother-in-law was president of the Black Women's
Federation.

MARIPA, Susan (34), was shot dead by two named
perpetrators associated with the MANDELA UNITED
FootsaLL CruB in Tladi, Soweto, Johannesburg, on

29 October 1987 after it was alleged that Ms Maripa
knew too much about a neighbour’s death.
MARIPANE, Ngoakoane L ydia, was tortured by
members of the SAP at Seshego police station,
Pietersburg, in 1984 because his brother was an ANC
member.

MARITE, Tokelo John (22), was attacked in his home
by named members of the THREE MILLION GANG in
Gelukwaarts, Kroonstad, OFS, on 28 March 1992.
When he tried to escape, he was caught and killed.
MARITZ, HSM, was injured when MK operatives
detonated an explosive in a car outside the South
African Air Force (SAAF) headquarters in Church
Street, Pretoria, on 20 May 1983. Twenty-one people
were killed and 217 injured. The overall commander of
MK’s Special Operations Unit and two MK operatives
were granted amnesty (AC/2001/003 and
AC/2001/023). See CHURCH STREET BOMBING, PRETORIA.
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MARITZ, JH, was injured when MK operatives
detonated an explosive in a car outside the South
African Air Force (SAAF) headquarters in Church
Street, Pretoria, on 20 May 1983. Twenty-one people
were killed and 217 injured. The overall commander of
MK’s Special Operations Unit and two MK operatives
were granted amnesty (AC/2001/003 and
AC/2001/023). See CHURCH STREET BOMBING, PRETORIA.
MARKLOE, Martin (6), was shot and injured when
police opened fire with rubber bullets after a community
meeting at Prieska, Cape, in January 1986.

MARKS, Elizabeth , was shot in Soweto,
Johannesburg, in 1990 during conflict between IFP-
aligned hostel-dwellers and ANC-supporting residents.
MAROBELA, Hellen (36), had her home in Ga-
Kgapane, Lebowa, damaged in an arson attack by
members of the SAP on 15 October 1986.

MAROE, Mampatana Salamina , suffered severe ill-
treatment and damage to property on 17 June 1992 in
the BOIPATONG MASSACRE in Boipatong, near Vanderbijl-
park, Tvl, which left 45 people dead and 27 seriously
injured. Thirteen perpetrators were granted amnesty; a
further three applications were refused (AC/2000/209).
MAROEKOANE, Anna Ndoti , was shot and severely
injured by members of the SAP in Sharpeville,
Vereeniging, Tvl, during the SHARPEVILLE MASSACRE ON
21 March 1960.

MAROGA, Lazar us, an SAP member, was stabbed to
death in Namakgale, Lebowa, on 19 February 1986
during conflict over the proposed removal of a chief.
MAROLA, Andrew Thozamile (23), was arrested in
Robertson, Cape, on 20 November 1985, and beaten
by members of the SAP. After spending three months
in custody, public violence charges against him were
withdrawn due to lack of evidence. He was again
detained on 19 June 1986 and held under emergency
regulations for three months. See POLICE BRUTALITY.
MAROPE, Evans (19), an ANC supporter, was beaten
by members of the Bophuthatswana Police in Zeerust,
Tvl, on 8 January 1991 during conflict over the forced
INCORPORATION Of Braklaagte into Bophuthatswana.
MAROTI, Kholekile Charles (24), was shot dead by
members of the SAP in Guguletu, Cape Town, on 28
August 1985, on the day of the PoLLSMOOR MARCH. He
was one of nine people shot dead by police that day.
MARRAND, Wellington Thembinkosi  (24), was
detained and tortured by members of the SAP in
Durban, in March 1984. He was convicted with five
others and sentenced to five years’ imprisonment on
Robben Island in December 1984 for recruiting people
to undergo military training with the ANC.
MARTHINUS, Br enda, was injured in a hand grenade
explosion on 25 May 1993 in Kimberley, Cape, during
an ANC protest march to the Bophuthatswana
consulate. Two MK operatives threw a hand grenade
at the building which bounced back into the crowd,
killing one person and injuring 41 others. Two ANC
members were wrongly convicted of the killing. Four
MK operatives and ANC members, two of whom
denied guilt, were refused amnesty (AC/2000/053 and
AC/2000/241).
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MARTIN, Belinda Venice (23), was arrested in August
1975 and held in solitary confinement for six weeks in
Johannesburg, for opposing ethnically based elections.
MARTIN, Florence (36), a People’s Congress
supporter, lost her house and livestock in an arson
attack by supporters of Chief BK Matlala in GaMatlala,
Lebowa, on 2 February 1980 because Mr Martin
resisted Lebowa’s proposed independence from South
Africa. Two people died and about 80 were wounded
in the attack.

MARTIN, Kevin Peter Robert (19), was tortured in
detention at John Vorster Square in Johannesburg, on
4 August 1975. Mr Martin was involved in mobilising
his community to oppose the imminent ethnically
based elections.

MARTIN, Muzi Mongezi (23), an ANC supporter, was
shot dead by ANC supporters, some of whom are
named, in Orlando West, Soweto, Johannesburg, on 2
September 1992 because he was believed to be an
IFP supporter.

MARTIN, Vuyelwa Joyce (49), an ANC supporter, lost
her shop and tavern in an arson attack by named ANC
supporters in Orlando West, Soweto, Johannesburg,
on 2 September 1992. The family was targeted
because they were believed to be IFP supporters.
MARTINS, Bongani (21), was shot dead and his body
was burnt in Bekkersdal, near Westonaria, Tvl, during
conflict between ANC, AZAPO and IFP supporters on
22 December 1991.

MARTINS, Bryn Lowis Kabelu (19), a UDF supporter,
was assaulted and deprived of food while in detention
in Virginia, OFS, in April 1985. He was arrested with
three others, allegedly while trying to leave the
country.

MARTINS, Deon, a civilian, was injured when APLA
operatives opened fire on a vehicle travelling from
Zastron to Sterkspruit in the OFS on 18 March 1992.
In the attack, one person was shot dead while he lay
injured next to the car. Mr Martins was severely
injured. Two managed to escape unhurt. See APLA
ATTACKS. One APLA member was granted amnesty
(AC/2000/148). See ZASTRON ROAD AMBUSH.

MARTINS, Joel Geor ge, an MK operative, was
assaulted and tortured by members of the Witwaters-
rand Security Branch at John Vorster Square,
Johannesburg, during 1988. A Witwatersrand Security
Branch operative was granted amnesty for the torture
(AC/2001/275).

MARUBINI, Funzani Joyce (32), a Namakgale Youth
Congress (NYC) member, was detained during a
meeting of the NYC. Ms Marubini was ordered to
undress and was sjambokked by members of the
SAP in Namakgale, Lebowa, on 21 March 1986
because the homeland government saw UDF-aligned
youth as a political theat.

MARUFANE, Mildred (51), was shot in the leg in
Alexandra, Johannesburg, while attending the night
vigil of a friend on March 27 1991. The night vigil was
attacked, 13 people were killed and 17 injured. Five
IFP supporters were arrested for the attack but were
found not guilty and discharged.
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MARULA, Patrick Pheteswayo (27), wa s severely
beaten by members of the SAP in Bushbuckridge,
Lebowa, on 28 February 1990 when they attacked a
crowd celebrating the release of Nelson Mandela. Mr
Marula was also detained and tortured in 1993 for
attending a community meeting.

MARUME, Ndiko , a NACTU member, was severely
injured when named police officers and WITDOEKE
attacked striking mineworkers at Zamdela, Sasolburg,
OFS, on 2 October 1987. He died in police custody
shortly after the attack.

MARUMO, Alfred T oko, was shot dead by ‘comrades’
in Sharpeville, Vereeniging, Tvl, in May 1992. Sharpeville,
like many other Transvaal townships, was embroiled in
conflict between ANC and IFP supporters in the early
1990s.

MARUMO, Baslius Matlogelwa , was detained without
trial for two weeks in April 1986 in Siyabuswa, Kwa-
Ndebele, because he held illegal meetings and
encouraged resistance to INCORPORATION into
KwaNdebele. While in detention he was deprived of
medical attention.

MARUMO, Elizabeth Lesholobe (70), was stabbed and
hacked to death while sick in bed in Soweto, Johannes-
burg, on 8 September 1991 by IFP supporters returning
from a rally at the Jabulani stadium. Members of the
SAP allegedly shot open the door for the perpetrators.
MARUMO, James December (23), was one of four
youths shot dead by members of the SAP in Colesberg,
Cape, on 3 July 1985, after extensive unrest broke out
in the township.

MARUMO, Maki Martha (15), was shot and injured in
Sebokeng, Tvl, on 20 September 1992 when IFP
supporters tried to pull her into a car and then shot her
several times. DRIVE-BY SHOOTINGS occurred often
during conflict in the Vaal Triangle in the early 1990s.
MARUMO, Maletsatsi , was killed by members of an
ANC self-defence unit (SDU) near Small Farms, Tvl, on
14 June 1993. Ms Marumo was believed to be an IFP
supporter. One perpetrator was granted amnesty
(AC/1999/0343).

MARUMO, Wessels Skuta Mahoko , an SAP
member, was killed by ‘comrades’ on May 30, 1992 in
Sharpeville, Vereeniging, Tvl, during intense political
conflict. Mr Marumo was accused of killing an ANC
supporter in the area. Mr Marumo’s body was chopped
up and his severed head was paraded around the
township and placed on a signpost on the main road.
MARUNGW ANA, Lucas ‘Billy-Boy’ (26), was arrested
and severely assaulted by members of the Bophutha-
tswana Police in Lekubu, Bophuthatswana, on 27
March 1989 because he resisted Leeuwfontein’s
INCORPORATION into Bophuthatswana and attended
Chief Sebogodi’s victory celebrations in his legal battle
against his rival Chief Moiloa. Mr Marungwana was
arrested and taken to Motswedi Police station where
he was interrogated, caned and detained for a month.
MARUPING, Jackonia Rakoena (28), was shot dead in
a DRIVE-BY SHOOTING in Vosloorus, Tvl, on 11 November
1991.
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MARUTLA, Maphuti (45), had her home burnt down
on 2 February 1980 at GaMatlala, Lebowa, by
supporters of Chief BK Matlala because she resisted
Lebowa’s proposed independence from South Africa.
MARWANE, Wilfred Sebonege , was shot dead by
members of the SAP outside his home in Emdeni,
Soweto, Johannesburg, on 19 January 1987. It is believed
he was targeted after a sentence for ‘terrorist activities’
had been set aside by the Appeal Court in 1979.
MARWANQANA, Alfred Fikile (50), an ANC member
from Port Elizabeth, was shot dead in an attack by
SADF Special Forces operatives on several ANC houses
and a block of flats in Maseru, Lesotho, on 9 December
1982. Thirty South Africans, including Mr Marwangana’s
son and daughter, and 12 citizens of Lesotho were
killed in the midnight attack. Mr Marwangana had
previously been imprisoned for six and a half years on
Robben Island for political offences, and thereafter
banished to llinge, near Queenstown. After 12 years
of banishment, he and his family fled to Lesotho four
days prior to the raid.

MARWANQANA, Monde (3), survived an attempted
killing, when SADF Special Forces operatives attacked
several ANC houses and a block of flats in Maseru,
Lesotho, on 9 December 1982. Thirty South Africans
and 12 citizens of Lesotho were killed in the midnight
attack. Monde’s mother, grandfather and an uncle
were among those killed. Her grandmother, brother,
aunt and uncle survived the attack. The family was
from Port Elizabeth.

MARWANQANA, Mutiwe Nellie (47), survived an
attempted killing when SADF Special Forces operatives
attacked several ANC houses and a block of flats in
Maseru, Lesotho, on 9 December 1982. Thirty South
Africans and 12 citizens of Lesotho were killed in the
midnight attack. Ms Marwangana’s husband, a son
and a daughter were among those killed. Two of her
other children and two grandchildren survived the
attack. The family was from Port Elizabeth.
MARWANQANA, Mzukisi (17), was shot dead in an
attack by SADF Special Forces operatives on several
ANC houses and a block of flats in Maseru, Lesotho,
on 9 December 1982. Thirty South Africans, including
Mr Marwangana’s father and sister, and 12 citizens of
Lesotho were killed in the midnight attack. The family
was from Port Elizabeth.

MARWANQANA, Phumelane (12), survived an
attempted killing when SADF Special Forces operatives
attacked several ANC houses and a block of flats in
Maseru, Lesotho, on 9 December 1982. Thirty South
Africans and 12 citizens of Lesotho were killed in the
midnight attack. Phumelane’s father, a brother and
sister were among those killed. His mother, sister,
niece and nephew survived the attack. The family was
from Port Elizabeth.

MARWANQANA, Pumeza (22), survived an
attempted killing when SADF Special Forces
operatives attacked several ANC houses and a block
of flats in Maseru, Lesotho, on 9 December 1982.
Thirty South Africans and 12 citizens of Lesotho were
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killed in the midnight attack. Ms Marwangana’s father,
her brother and sister were among those killed. Her
mother, sister, niece and nephew survived the attack.
The family was from Port Elizabeth.

MARWANQANA, Thandiswa (32), was shot dead in
an attack by SADF Special Forces operatives on several
ANC houses and a block of flats in Maseru, Lesotho,
on 9 December 1982. Thirty South Africans and 12
citizens of Lesotho were killed in the midnight attack.
Ms Marwangana'’s father and brother were amongst
those killed. Her six-month-old daughter survived. The
family was from Port Elizabeth.

MARWANQANA, Yolanda (10 months), survived an
attempted killing when SADF Special Forces
operatives attacked several ANC houses and a block
of flats in Maseru, Lesotho, on 9 December 1982.
Thirty South Africans and 12 citizens of Lesotho were
killed in the midnight attack. Yolanda’s mother,
grandfather and an uncle were among those killed.
Her grandmother, brother, aunt and uncle survived the
attack. The family was from Port Elizabeth.
MARWEBU, Talente Mirriam (62), an IFP supporter,
had her home at Richmond Farm, near KwaMashu,
Durban, burnt down by ANC supporters on 3 July 1990.
MARWESHE, Mahlaola Jeanet (13), was shot and
severely injured in Moutse, KwaNdebele, on 23 March
1992 when members of the SADF were called in by
the local chief to quell political protests in the area.
MARWEXU, Nosipho Blossom (20), a COSAS
member, was beaten by members of the Security
Police while in detention at Cambridge police station,
East London, on 18 June 1986. She was accused of
burning the homes of two police members during the
1986 state of emergency. See POLICE BRUTALITY.
MARX, Getr uida, sustained damage to her property
in a limpet mine explosion at a bus stop near the
Checkers shopping complex in Silverton, Tvl, on 4 July
1986. Four MK operatives were granted amnesty for
the attack (AC/1999/0257).

MASA, Elizabeth , survived when shots were fired
into the home of the Ntsime family at Mmabatho,
Bophuthatswana, during an attempted coup d’état on
10 February 1988. Two Bophuthatswana Defence
Force members were granted amnesty for their role in
the attempted coup (AC/2000/044).

MASABALALA, Sandra (20), died after she was tear-
gassed by members of the SAP in Port Elizabeth on
21 April 1986 during the state of emergency. See
POLICE BRUTALITY.

MASAKALA, Jamina (27), was burnt to death in an
arson attack on her home in Tokoza, Tvl, on

12 September 1990 during political conflict. Ms
Masakhala’s husband was also killed in the attack.
MASAKALA, Joshua (27), was burnt to death in an
arson attack on his home in Tokoza, Tvl, on 12
September 1990 during political conflict. His wife was
also killed in the attack.

MASALA, Edith , had her shop looted and subsequently
burnt down by ‘comrades’ during a consumer boycott
in September 1990 at Evaton, Tvl.
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MASALA, Nicholus (46), a CAWU member, was shot
and injured by members of the SAP during protests in
Mdantsane, Ciskei, on 8 August 1987.

MASALESA, Raisibe Albertina (32), had her home
demolished by members of the Bophuthatswana
Police acting on an eviction order from the Bophutha-
tswana government in Sekampaneng, Hammanskraal,
Tvl, on 8 February 1993.

MASAMANZI, Mlungisi Samuel  (24), a BCM member,
was shot and severely injured by members of the SAP
in Guguletu, Cape Town, on 11 August 1976. His left
arm was amputated as a result of the shooting.
MASANABO, Folobi Jacob (32), an ANC supporter,
was shot dead by members of the SAP who opened
fire on a crowd of people marching to the town council
offices in Mamelodi, Pretoria, on 21 November 1985.
The marchers were protesting against rent increases.
MASANABO, Petrus Paulus (30), was severely
beaten and shot in the head by members of the SAP
in Vlaklaagte, KwaNdebele, in April 1984 because he
refused to join the ImBokoDo vigilante group during
conflict over INCORPORATION.

MASANABO, Simon Babili , was abducted and burnt
to death by ‘comrades’ in Siyabuswa, KwaNdebele, on
1 June 1986 during conflict over proposed
independence which engulfed KwaNdebele between
May and September 1986.

MASANG, Ntombifikile Nesta (41), had her home at
Inanda, near KwaMashu, Durban, burnt down in June
1993 during intense conflict between ANC and IFP
supporters in the area.

MASANGANE, Mozi Benjamin  (48), had his house
burnt down by ‘comrades’ in Klau-Klau, White River,
Tvl, on 19 May 1986 because he was a friend of the
local chief believed to be a puppet of the apartheid
government.

MASANGO, Aar on, a UDF supporter, was abducted by
IMBokODO vigilantes in 1986, and taken to Almansdrift
Hall in KwaNdebele where he was beaten with
sjamboks, in an attempt to force him to join ImBokoDo.
MASANGO, Andile Geof frey (23), was detained for
four months at Oudtshoorn, Cape, in 1985, after being
implicated in the killing of a local cCOuNCILLOR.
MASANGO, Aubrey Benjamin Mzukisi  (25), was
arrested during political conflict at Oudtshoorn, Cape,
during 1985, and detained for six months.

MASANGO, Bettie Bacedeni (43), was abducted by
IMBOKODO Vigilantes in 1986, and taken to Almansdrift
Hall in KwaNdebele where she was beaten with
sjamboks, in an attempt to force her to join IMBokoDO.
MASANGO, Bheki Moses , an ANC activist, was shot
dead by alleged members of the SAP in Belfast, Tvl,
during a mass meeting about rent problems on 4
January 1986.

MASANGO, David , was injured when MK operatives
detonated an explosive in a car outside the South
African Air Force (SAAF) headquarters in Church
Street, Pretoria, on 20 May 1983. Twenty-one people
were killed and 217 injured. The overall commander of
MK'’s Special Operations Unit and two MK operatives
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